# MERGER AND ITS IMPACT ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF COMMERCIAL BANKS IN NEPAL

A Thesis

By

Bishnu Maya Ghimire

# **Central Department of Management**

Class Roll No: 68

Exam Roll No: 1111/2017

Registration No: 7-1-38-796-2006

Submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirement for the degree of

Master of Business Management (MBS)

in the

**Faculty of Management** 

**Tribhuvan University** 

Kathmandu, Nepal

November, 2019

# **CERTIFICATION OF AUTHORSHIP**

I certify that the work in this thesis has not previously been submitted for a degree nor has it been submitted as part of requirements for a degree except as fully acknowledged within the text.

I also certify that the thesis has been written by me. Any help that I have received in my research work and the preparation of the thesis itself has been acknowledged. In addition, I certify that all information sources and literature used are indicated in the reference section of the thesis.

(.....)

BISHNU MAYA GHIMIRE

Date:

### **RECOMMENDATION LETTER**

It is certified that thesis entitled Merger and its impact on financial performance of commercial banks in Nepal summited by Bishnu Maya Ghimire is an original piece of research work carried out the candidate under my supervision. Literary presentation is satisfactory and the thesis is in a form suitable for publication. Work evinces the capacity of the candidate for critical examination and independent judgement. Candidate has put in at least 60 days after registration the proposal. The thesis is forwarded for examination.

Lecture Phul Prasad Subedi Thesis Supervisor Central Department of Management Tribhuvan University Kirtipur, Kathmandu, Nepal Date:

# **APPROVAL-SHEET**

We, the undersigned, have examined the thesis entitled Merger and its impact on financial performance of commercial banks in Nepal presented by Bishnu Maya Ghimire, a candidate for the degree of Master of Business Studies (MBS) and conducted the viva voce examination of the candidate. We hereby certify that the thesis is worthy of acceptance.

Thesis Supervisor

.....

Internal

.....

External

.....

Chairperson, Research Committee

.....

Head of the Department

#### ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This study entitled "Merger and its impact on financial performance of commercial banks in Nepal has been conducted for the partial requirements for the degree of Master of Business studies (MBS) of Tribhuvan University. Every project whether big or small is successful largely due to the effort of a number of wonderful people who have always given their valuable advice or lent a helping hand. I sincerely appreciate the inspiration, support and guidance of all those people how have been instructed in making this study a success. My foremost appreciation and thanks goes to my honorable supervisor, Phul Prasad Subedi for his close supervision and professional advice and encouragement during the research work. I am highly indebted and very thankful for his continuous support and constructive suggestions that have enabled this research work to achieve its present form.

Special mention goes to Prof. Dr. Sanjaya Kumar Shrestha (Chairperson, research committee) all member of research committee for timely and continuous guidance throughout the study. They not only the reviewed my work but also suggested valuable advice and insights. I would like to express cordial gratitude Prof. Dr. Ramji Gautam (Head of the Department) for his inspiration and support to complete this research work. I also highly appreciate the effort of all teacher and other member of the Central Department of Management.

Finally I am grateful to my parents and family for their full encouragement and support in order to make this study come fruitful. Their continuous motivation towards the path of my academic pursuit, constant financial and moral support has steered me to complete my Master's Degree.

Bishnu Maya Ghimire

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Title page				
Declaration				
Recommendation				
Viva-voce sheet				
Acknowledgements	V			
Table of contents	vi			
List of tables	viii			
List of abbreviations	ix			
Abstract	Х			
Chapter – 1 Introduction				
1.1 Background of the Study	1			
1.1.1 Brief Introduction of sampled Bank				
1.2 Problem Statement and research questions				
1.3 Purpose of the Study				
1.4 Conceptual Framework				
1.5 Uses of the Study				
1.6 Limitation of the Study				
1.7 Chapter Plan				
Chapter – 2 Literature review				
2.1 Theoretical review	9			
2.1.1 Economic motive theories	9			
2.1.2 Theory of synergy	9			
2.1.3 Theory of economy	10			
2.1.4 Financial synergy theory	10			
2.1.5 Tax incentive hypothesis theory	10			
2.1.6 Managerial motives	11			
2.1.7 Types of mergers and acquisitions				
2.2 Review research articles				
2. 3 Research gap				

Chapter – 3 Research methodology		
3.1 Research design		27
3.2 Population and sampling		27
3.3 Data collection and processing procedure		28
3.4 Data analysis tools and techniques		28
CHAPTER – 4 Results		
4.1 Data presentation and analysis		32
4.1.1 Pre and post-merger comparison of performance		32
4.1.1.1 Return on assets		32
4.1.1.2 Return on equity		33
4.1.1.3 Earning per share		34
4.1.1.4 Profit margin		35
4.1.1.5 Assets quality	35	
4.1.1.6 Total loan and advance to total deposit ratio.		36
4.1.1.7 Capital adequacy position		37
4.1.1.8 Debt to equity ratio		38
4.2 Hypothesis testing (t-Test)		39
4.2.1 Paired two sample t-test for means performance ROA.		39
4.2.2 Paired two sample t-test for mean performance of ROE.		40
4.2.3 Paired two sample t-test for mean performance of EPS.		40
4.2.4 Paired two sample t-test for mean performance of Profit Margin		41
4.2.5 Paired two sample t-test for mean performance of assets quality.		42
4.2.6 Paired two sample t-test for mean performance of liquidity.		43
4.2.7 Paired two sample t-test for mean performance of D/E ratio.		44
4.2.8 Paired two sample t-test for mean performance of capital adequacy		45
4.3 Major finding		46
CHAPTER – 5 Conclusion		
5.1 Summary		48
5.2 Conclusion		50
5.3 Implication and recommendation		51

# LIST OF TABLE AND FIGURES

4.1.1. Return on assets	32
4.1.2 Return on equity	33
4.1.3 Earning per share	34
4.1.4 Profit margin	35
4.1.5 Assets quality	36
4.1.6 Total loan and advance to total deposit ratio.	37
4.1.7 Capital adequacy position	37
4.1.8 Debt to equity ratio	38
4.2.1 Paired two sample t-test for means performance ROA.	39
4.2.1 Paired two sample t-test for mean performance of ROE.	40
4.2.3 Paired Two Sample t-Test for Mean performance of EPS.	41
4.2.4 Paired two sample t-test for mean performance of profit margin.	42
4.2.5 Paired two sample t-test for mean performance of assets quality.	42
4.2.6 Paired two sample t-test for mean performance of liquidity.	43
4.2.7 Paired two sample t-test for mean performance of D/E ratio.	44
4.2.8 Paired two sample t-test for mean performance of capital adequacy.	45

# ABBREVIATION

AQ	=	Assets Quality
BAFIA	=	Bank and Financial Institution Act
BOK	=	Bank of Kathmandu Limited
CA	=	Capital adequacy
EPS	=	Earnings per share
FRA	=	Financial Ratio Analysis
M & A	=	Merger and acquisition
NI	=	Net Income
NPL	=	Non-performing assets
NRB	=	Nepal Rastra Bank
PM	=	Profit margin
SBL	=	Siddhartha bank limited
TLA	=	Total Loan and Advance
TOR	=	Total Operating Revenue
ROA	=	Return on Assets
ROE	=	Return on Equity

# ABSTRACTS

The study entitled merger and its impact on financial performance of commercial banks in Nepal. The purpose of this research is to study the effect of merger on the financial performance of commercial bank when Nepal Rastra Bank introduced a forceful merger bylaws policy in the year of 2011. Three year pre-merge and post-merger financial performance is analysis of three commercial banks which are merged in 2015 AD. This study is based on the descriptive and analytical research design. Performance of commercial banks is measured by different variables such as ROA, ROE, EPS, profit margin, capital adequacy, assets quality, liquidity and debt to equity ratios. Pared sample t-test is used to measure the significant change pre-merger performance and postmerger performance. This study conclude that Returns on Assets, earning per share, profit margin, liquidity increased significantly after the merger of the banks. However return on equity, assets quality, debt to total equity and capital adequacy ratio are decreased after the merger. The assets quality ratios, which is measured by the total nonperforming assets to total loan and advance is decreased after the merger, which show that the performing assets of merged banks. The merged banks able to maintain nonperforming assets ratios as refers by Nepal Rastra Bank. Similarly the sampled merged bank able to meet the capital adequacy ratio.

# CHAPTER I

# INTRODUCTION

#### 1.1 Background of the study

Mergers, acquisitions and takeovers, consolidation have been a part of the business world for so many years ago. In today's dynamic economic environment, the main objective of a company is to maximize the shareholder's wealth. Through mergers and acquisitions, a company can develop a competitive advantage and ultimately increase shareholder value. A merger involves a blend of two companies, rather than mere legal enjoinment or absorption of one firm into another merger as a process in which one of the two companies loses its identity to make a one firm. In merger transaction involving two or more companies in the exchange of securities and only one company survives. (Kishore, 2009)

There are various strategic and financial objectives that influence mergers and acquisitions. According to Sudarsanam (2003) two organizations with often different corporate personalities, cultures and value systems are bought together. Merger or Amalgamation may take two forms: i) Merger through absorption: It is a combination of two or more companies combines together into an existing company. In absorption, all companies except one lose their identity. ii) Merger through consolidation: It is a combination of two or more companies into a new company. In case of consolidation through merger, all companies are legally dissolved and a new entity is created.

Bank mergers is claimed to be the sources of efficiency gains from the realization of economies of scale and economies of scope, the removal of overlapping services and the increasing awareness of innovative banking tools; however, one needs to read over the assertions with caution. It is due to the fact that much of the prior research has focused on the market driven merger or the voluntary merger. At the one hand, the voluntary bank merger refers to the process by which two or more banks merged and become one new entity. The merger takes place without any objection from the shareholders and the board of both banks. Banking sector plays a leading role in financing a country economic

activities. Its performance is crucial in determining a country's economy growth and stability.

Performance of banking sector is measured by Capital adequacy, assets quality, management efficiency, earning efficiency, liquidity. Performance of the banks is measured at two level, one is at the management and regulatory level of the banks and another is at external rating agencies. Purpose of regulatory and supervisory rating systems is to measure the bank performance at internal level and its compliance with regulatory requirements to keep the bank on right track. These ratings are highly confidential and are only available to the bank management. External credit rating agencies examine and evaluate the banks and issue ratings for the general public and investor in particulars. It is great importance that both these rating present the same results about the condition of the banks to provider clear information to investor and management.

The central bank planned to improve the health of the financial sector by introducing the Merger by law 2011 grounded on the Company Act 2006 article 177, Bank and financial institution act (BAFIA) 2006 article 68 and 69 that pressurize all the BFIs for immediate merger as a consolidation. A merger was not a choice of the Nepal Rastra bank (NRB) but it was a compulsion strategy to increase the capital and strengthen their capacity to face the competitive market. It is perceived that, merger result in newer and larger organizations which are supposed to be efficient in allocating resources, human and capital and maximize the output gains. It is believed that the larger banks, with more resources can offer more products and services at lesser operating cost i.e. at economies of scale. (www.nrb.gov.np). However, the perceived gains do not occur, at least not to the extent that is perceived. Some of the genuine impacts or effect of mergers on the banking industry can be observed around the world, which has been the reduced availability of loans to the customer base after merger. It is mainly because of decline in competitiveness in banking industry and increase in the interest rates above reasonable level. Banks have been observed to be engaged in activities ranging from anti-competitiveness to corruption after the merger. When economies of scale are observed, there is a significant uncertainty over how wide the range of scale is. There is often increase in dissatisfaction among employees after merger of the institutions. A lot of issues can be found in the management of staff after the merger.

#### **1.1.1 Brief introduction of sampled banks.**

#### Bank of Kathmandu Limited.

One of the prominent banks in Nepal, Bank of Kathmandu Limited (BOK) was established in the year 1995 with a vision to become a significant contributor to the economic development of Nepal distinguishing the bank as an efficient, competitive, safe and topquality financial instruction. The bank with its corporate slogan 'we make your life easier' is committed to deliver quality services to its customers, generating goods return to the shareholders, providing attractive incentives to the employees and serving the community through strong corporate social responsibility. Horizontal merger is held between Bank of Kathmandu and Lumbini bank limited in 2015 AD and transaction operated by the name of Bank of Kathmandu Lumbini Limited.

## **NMB Bank Limited**

NMB bank limited licensed as "A' class financial institution by Nepal Rastra Bank in May 2008 has been operated in the Nepalese Financial market for the twenty years and is one of the leading commercial banks in the banking industry. The bank has a Joint Venture agreement with Nederlandse Financierings-Maatschappij Voor Ontwikelingslanden (FMO) wherein FMO holds 17% of the bank's shares and is the largest shareholder of the bank. In September 2016 the bank signed a Joint Venture Agreement with Nederlandse Financierings-Maatschappij Voor Ontwikelingslanden (FMO), the Dutch development bank following which FMO became the single largest shareholder of the bank. NMB bank was horizontally merged with the Pathibhara Bikash Bank limited, Clean Energy Development limited and Prudential Financial Co-operative limited in 2015 and transaction is operated by the name of NMB bank limited.

## Siddhartha Bank Limited.

Siddhartha Bank Limited (SBL) established in 2002 and promoted by prominent personalities of Nepal, today stands as one of the consistently growing bank in Nepal. While the promoters come from a wide range of sector, they possess immense business acumen and share their valuable experiences towards the betterment of the bank.

Horizontal merge held between Siddhartha Bank Limited and Business Universal Development Limited in 2015 AD and transaction operated by Siddhartha Bank Limited.

## 1.2 Problem statement and research questions.

The study cover the analysis of the merger and its impact on financial performance of commercial banks in Nepal. Shareholders and managers of banks turn to mergers and acquisitions in the hope of improving financial performance in their banks but studies on this subject have produced mixed results. It is new concept in Nepalese BFIs and there is a lot of confusion about the merger and their impacts on the long term growth and profitability of the BFIs. Mergers have become the main means of attaining higher performance which is the ultimate goal of every firm, including banks. Some studies have suggested that merging banks perform better than the individual banks performed before the merger whereas other studies have not found any meaningful improvement in financial performance as a result of a merger.

Many studies carried out in the area of M&A have established inconsistent results. Failure means lowered productivity, labor unrest, higher absenteeism and loss of shareholder value. A study conduct by Shah & Khan (2017) on Impacts of Mergers and Acquisitions on Acquirer Banks' Performance, researchers concluded that most of the profitability ratios, including ROE, ROA, net markup and non-markup income to total assets have declined in the post-merger period. Only an insignificant improvement is observed in net interest margin and administrative expenses to profit before tax ratios in the post-merger period. Deterioration is also observed in the liquidity ratios of the acquirer banks in the post-merger period. The cash and cash equivalent to total assets has declined significantly and advances, and investment to total assets ratios are increased, but insignificantly. Similarly the performances of the acquirer banks do not reflect any worthwhile improvement in terms of capital stability in the post-merger period. The deposit to owners' equity ratio is significantly increased, but the capital adequacy has declined, showing an unfavorable effect on the performances of the acquirer banks in the post-merger period. Shrestha, Thapa & Phuyal (2017), carried out the study on a comparative study of merger effect on financial performance of banking and financial institutions in Nepal.

Shrestha, Thapa & Phuyal (2017), study also shows that there is a significant change in performance before and after the merger and acquisition of banks. Mergers and acquisitions continue to be a highly popular form of corporate development in today's banking industry world over. However, in a paradox to their popularity, acquisitions appear to provide at best a mixed performance to the broad range of stakeholders involved. While target firm shareholders generally enjoy positive short-term returns, investors in bidding firms frequently experience share price underperformance in the months following acquisition, with negligible overall wealth gains for portfolio holders. This study is designed to fill the knowledge gap by answering the research question, what is the impact of Mergers and Acquisitions on the overall financial performance of commercial banks in Nepal? This study try to answering the following questions.

- 1. What is the impact of merger on liquidity position of banks?
- 2. Does the profitability position change after the merger?
- 3. Is there any different in capital adequacy position before and after the merger?

## **1.3 Purposes of the study**

The main objective of the study is to analysis the effect merger on the financial performance of banks.

- 1. To analyze the impact of merger on liquidity position of banks.
- 2. To examine the impact of merger on profitability position of banks
- 3. To assess the impact of merger on capital adequacy position of banks.

#### **1.4 Conceptual framework**

The following conceptual framework is developed for the purpose of this study. It shows the relationship between the merger as independent variable and the operating performance as dependent variable. The dependent variable (financial performance) is measured by using financial ratios, grouped into three categories including profitability, liquidity position and capital structure.



# Hypothesis

H<sub>0</sub>: There is no significant difference in the Liquidity positon between pre and post-merger of banks.

H<sub>1</sub>: There is significant difference in the Liquidity position between pre and post-merger of banks.

H<sub>0</sub>: There is no significant difference in the Profitability position between pre and postmerger of banks

H<sub>1</sub>: There is significant difference in the Profitability position between pre and post-merger of banks.

H<sub>0</sub>: There is no significant difference in the Capital Adequacy position between pre and post-merger of banks.

H<sub>1</sub>: There is significant difference in the Capital Adequacy position between pre and postmerger of banks.

#### 1.5 Uses of the study

In the light of the fact that mammoth resources both financially and non-financially are usually committed to effectively implement mergers and acquisitions, it is noteworthy to establish the actual impact of M&A on the financial performance of Commercial banks in Nepal. The submission of this fact is significant used to the Policy makers to devise new standards in establishing an appropriate level of merger and acquisition. The findings be used to come up with more effective methods of managing liquidity levels of a firm. Likewise the study add knowledge on the understanding of the importance of mergers in analyzing performance by current investors, customers of commercial banks and other banks in this competitive industry.

Similarly this study provide a base for further research especially in the areas of merger and acquisitions for researchers interested in building on the already existing knowledge base about theoretical and empirical work on the impacts of mergers and acquisition on the financial performance of commercial banks. It would be benefit to executives and managers of the commercial banks as the study would cover banks that have recently merged and their relative performance. The findings of this study makes contributions to the existing paradigm on investor's behavior toward the mergers, acquisition and restructuring of banks. It would also be used to establish the research gaps and provide reference for further research under the field of merger and acquisition.

#### 1.6 Limitation of the study

This study tries to examine the effect of merger on financial performance of commercial banks in Nepal, still it has its own restrictions which are as below.

- There are many variables that can be used to measure the performance of bank but this study cover only ROA, ROE, EPS, profit margin, assets quality, debt to equity ratio, CAR, liquidity ratios.
- 2. This study is based on the secondary data collected only from the annual report of Bank of Kathmandu, NMB Bank and Siddhartha Bank Limited, only the data of other bank and financial intuition merged with these banks are ignored in this study reliability of the result is based on the reliability of data available from the annual report.
- 3. For pre-merger information and data only Bank of Kathmandu, NMB Bank and Siddhartha Bank Limited are collected the date of other bank and financial institutions which are merge with these banks are ignored in this study.

- 4. This research is context specific; its results and analysis may be peculiar to BFIs only and do not serve the rest of sector of Nepalese corporate world.
- 5. Assumption of paired sample t-test is not checked in this study.
- 6. Apart from the profitability, other performance ratios like risk, cash flow has been ignored to know the financial performance of banks

## 1.7 Chapter plan

Considering the objectives in mind, the study is organized into five chapters.

#### **Chapter 1: Introduction**

This chapter includes background of the study, statement of the problems, objectives of the study, conceptual framework, and significance of the study, limitation of the study and organization of the study.

#### **Chapter 2: Review of literature**

This chapter includes the relevant previous writing and studies to find the existing gap; review of textbook, dissertation is included in this chapter.

## **Chapter 3: Methodology**

This chapter contains research design, population and sample size, data collection procedure and tools used for analysis.

# **Chapter 4: Results**

This chapter consists of systematic presentation and analysis of financial statement employing financial and statistical tools. It also includes major findings and discussion.

#### **Chapter 5: Conclusion**

This chapter includes the summary, conclusion and implication of the study.

# **CHAPTER II**

# LITERATURE REVIEW

#### 2.1 Theoretical review

Acquisition refers to the situation were "one firm buys a controlling, or 100 percent interest in other firm with the intent of using a core competence more efficiently by making the acquired firm a subsidiary business within its portfolio. Normally acquisitions are the done in order to have time and speed of operational advantages, economies of scale and market advantages. There are mainly three types of acquisition there are horizontal, vertical and related. Whereas horizontal acquisition is related to the acquisition of a firm competing in the same industry, vertical acquisition refers to the acquiring a suppliers or distributor of one or more of its goods or services. On the other hand related acquisition refers to the acquisitions is that a merger is normally more collaborative, voluntary and mutually entered into than as acquisition, which is normally dominated by and organization taking over another. This suggests the merger of two firms agree to integrate operation on a relatively co-equal basis because they have resources and capabilities that together may create a stronger competitive advantage. (Adhikari, 2014). Several theories have been advanced towards the justification and impact of mergers and acquisition.

## 2.1.1 Economic motive theories

The economic motive for any merger is that shareholder wealth is increased by the transaction as the two companies are worth more combined than as separate companies,

# 2.1.2 Theory of synergy

According to Viverita (2008), the differential efficiency theory of mergers, if the management of firm  $\mathbf{A}$  is more efficient than the management of firm  $\mathbf{B}$  and if after firm  $\mathbf{A}$  acquires firm  $\mathbf{B}$ , the efficiency of firm  $\mathbf{B}$  is brought up to the level of firm  $\mathbf{A}$ , then this increase in efficiency is attributed to the merger. According to this theory, some firms operate below their potential and consequently have low efficiency. Such firms are likely

to be acquired by other, more efficient firms in the same industry. This is because firms with greater efficiency would be able to identify firms with good potential operating at lower efficiency. They would also have the 4managerial ability to improve the latter's performance.

## 2.1.3 Theory of economy

According to this theory, there are factors that cause the average cost of producing something to fall as the volume of its output increases. When both the target and bidder are equally efficient, simply combining their resources would lead to benefits due to economies of scale and complementary benefits. There are two types of economies of scale i.e. internal economies of scale that refers to the cost savings that accrue to a firm regardless of the industry, market or environment in which it operates and external economies of scale that refers to the way in which its industry is, (Trautwein, 1990).

#### **2.1.4 Financial synergy theory**

According to this theory, financial synergy occurs as a result of the lower costs of internal financing versus external financing. A combination of firms with different cash flow positions and investment opportunities may produce a financial synergy effect and achieve lower cost of capital. Tax saving is another considerations. When the two firms merge, their combined debt capacity may be greater than the sum of their individual capacities before the merger. The financial synergy theory also states that when the cash flow rate of the acquirer is greater than that of the acquired firm, capital is relocated to the acquired firm and its investment opportunities improve.

#### 2.1.5 Tax incentive hypothesis theory

As per Trautwein, (1990), the tax incentive hypothesis of mergers and acquisitions, tax provision is an important incentive for mergers as it not only affects the decision to merge but also the way a merger is structured. He further argues that different ways of structuring a merger have different tax consequences that includes an opportunity to carry over by the acquirer the net operating losses and unused tax credits, an opportunity to step up assets or use their new sales prices as a basis for depreciation, incentive provided by a lower income tax rate on capital gains than on dividends to retain earnings to acquire other firms and finally the opportunity for an acquiring firm to deduct from taxable income the interest payments incurred on acquisitions related in daftness.

#### 2.1.6 Managerial motives

According to Kemal, (2011), takeovers can also arise because of the agency problem that exists between shareholders and managers, whereby managers are more concerned with satisfying their own objectives than with increasing the wealth of shareholders. From this perspective, the motives behind some acquisitions may be to increase managers' pay and power. Managers may also believe that the larger their organization, the less likely it is to be taken over by another company and hence the more secure their jobs become. Takeovers made on these grounds have no shareholder wealth justification since managers are likely to increase their own wealth at the expense of the shareholders.

#### 2.1.7 Types of mergers and acquisitions

Trautwein, (1990), notes that businesses engage in a wide range of activities in seeking to exploit potential opportunities. Mergers, tender offers and joint ventures play an important role in the growth or expansion of firms. Growth is viewed as vital to the wellbeing of a firm. It is needed for a firm to compete for the best managerial talent by offering rapid promotions and broadened responsibilities. Without able executives, the firm is likely to decline in efficiency and value. Although the terms 'merger' and 'takeover' tend to be used synonymously, in practice there is a narrow distinction between them. A merger can be defined as a friendly reorganization of assets into a new organization, i.e. x and y merge to become z, a new company with the agreement of both sets of shareholders. Mergers involve similar sized companies, reducing the likelihood of one company dominating the other.

A takeover on the other hand is the acquisition of one company's ordinary share capital by another company financed by a cash payment, an issue of securities or a combination of both. Here the bidding company is usually larger than the target company. In practice, most acquisitions are takeovers rather than mergers since one of the two parties is dominant. The term itself is understood to connote hostility. Kumar and Bansal (2008), discusses three types of mergers: horizontal, conglomerate mergers and vertical.

#### **Horizontal mergers**

A horizontal merger involves the combination of two companies operating in the same industry and at a similar stage of productions. Forming a larger firm may have the benefit of economies of scale. Horizontal mergers are regulated by the government for their potential negative effect on competition. The number of firms in an industry is decreased by horizontal mergers and this may make it easier for the industry members to collude for monopoly profits. Horizontal mergers are also believed by many as potentially creating monopoly power on the part of the combined form enabling it to engage in anti-competitive practices.

#### **Conglomerate mergers**

This is a combination of two companies operating in different areas of business; any combination that is not vertical or horizontal. Three types of conglomerate mergers have been distinguished. Product-extension mergers broaden the product lines of firms. These are mergers between firms in related business activities and may also be called concentric mergers. A geographic market-extension merger involves two firms whose operations have been conducted in non-overlapping geographic area while a pure conglomerate merger involves unrelated business activities. Conglomerate firms differ fundamentally from investment companies in that they control the entities to which they make major financial commitments. Two important characteristics define a conglomerate firm. One, it controls a range of activities in various industries that require different skills in the specific managerial functions of research applied engineering, production and marketing. Two, diversification is achieved mainly by external acquisitions and mergers not by internal development.

#### Vertical mergers

Vertical mergers occur between firms in different stages of production operation within the same industry. In the oil industry, for example, distinctions are made between exploration

and production, refining, and marketing to the ultimate consumer. In the pharmaceutical industry one could distinguish between research and the development of new drugs, the production of drugs and the marketing of drug products through retail drug stores.

Muia (2010) advances various reasons for vertical mergers. First, there are technological economies such as the avoidance of retreating and transportation costs in the case of an integrated lion and steel producer. Second, transactions within a firm may eliminate the cost of searching for prices, contracting, payment collecting, and advertising and may also reduce the costs of communicating and of coordination production. Three, planning for inventory and production may be improved due to more efficient information flow within a single firm. Finally, when assets of a firm are specialized to another firm, the latter may act opportunistically to expropriate the quasi-rents accruing to the specialized assets. Expropriation can be accompanied by demanding supply of a good or service produced from the specialized assets at a price below its average cost to avoid the costs of haggling, which arise from the expropriation attempt. The assets are owned by a single vertically integrated firm. Divergent interest of parties to transaction be reconciled by common ownership. A vertical takeover can involve a more forward in the production process to secure a distribution outlet, or a more backward in the production process to secure the supply of raw materials e.g. a toy manufacturers merges with a chain of toy stores (forward integration; an auto manufacturers merges with a tire company (back integration).

#### 2.2 Review research articles

Shah & Khan (2017), conduct the research on Impacts of Mergers and Acquisitions on Acquirer Banks' Performance. Researcher investigates the effects of mergers and acquisitions (M & A) on the operating performance of the acquirer banks in Pakistan. For this purpose, a sample of 18 transactions, involving acquirer banks, listed on the Karachi Stock Exchange, is used. The Financial Ratio Analysis (FRA) is used to determine the effects of M & A. The significance of change in the operating performances is tested through a paired sample t-test. The results indicate deterioration in the performances of the acquirer banks in the post-merger period. Researchers concluded that most of the profitability ratios, including ROE, ROA, net markup and non-markup income to total

assets have declined in the post-merger period. Only an insignificant improvement is observed in net interest margin and administrative expenses to profit before tax ratios in the post-merger period. Deterioration is also observed in the liquidity ratios of the acquirer banks in the post-merger period. The cash and cash equivalent to total assets has declined significantly and advances, and investment to total assets ratios are increased, but insignificantly. Similarly the performances of the acquirer banks do not reflect any worthwhile improvement in terms of capital stability in the post-merger period. The deposit to owners' equity ratio is significantly increased, but the capital adequacy ratio has declined, showing an unfavorable effect on the performances of the acquirer banks in the post-merger period

Okpanachi (2011), conducted a comparative analysis of the impact of mergers and acquisitions on financial efficiency of banks in Nigeria. The study whose major objective was to make a comparative analysis of the impact of mergers and acquisitions on the financial efficiency of banks in Nigeria, made use of gross earnings, profit after tax and net assets of three selected banks namely, Access Bank Plc, First Bank of Nigeria Plc and Wema Bank Plc, extracted from their annual reports and accounts as indices to determine financial efficiency of the banks by comparing pre-mergers and acquisitions indices with the post-mergers and acquisitions indices for the period 2002 to 2008. The period 2002 to 2004 was considered as pre-merger period, 2005 as base year while year 2006 to 2008 were considered as post-merger period. This was done to determine if there were any significant difference between the efficiency of the banks in terms of gross earnings, profit after tax and net assets.

Shrestha, Thapa & Phuyal. (2017), carried out the study on a comparative study of merger effect on financial performance of banking and financial institutions in Nepal. This study makes an attempt to analyze the financial performance of merged banking and financial institutions relative to their pre-merger performance, and assess the perception of the stakeholders towards merger. Six banks and financial institutions are considered as sample to undertake this study along with 120 respondents for secondary and primary data respectively. The financial ratios comparison method along with t-test of changes in performance measures has been used. This study found that merger impacts performance

positively when larger and stable parties such as commercial banks act as bidders as opposed to the merger between smaller BFIs mainly other than commercial banks as bidder. The loan quality significantly deteriorates after merger in most of the cases and profitability measured in terms of ROA and ROE is adversely affected in most of the cases after the merger. Therefore, the merger should not be considered as the definite solutions to overcome the challenges faced in the market; enough evaluation is needed to select the right partners before executing the merger.

Shah & Dwa (2017), conduct the on a study on merger and operating performance of commercial banks of Nepal. This study aims to find the impact of mergers on operating performance of sample merged banks. To attain the research objective, this study has taken 8 independent variables; operating profit margin, net profit margin, return on assets, return on equity, debt equity ratio, return on loan loss provision, return on staff expenses and return on operating expenses. Three cases have been taken for the study as a sample to examine whether merger has led to a profitable situation or not. Research mainly focuses on quarterly secondary data which is analyzed using paired sample t-test, correlation analysis, VIF test and regression analysis. From the analysis it is deduced that merger has no significant role in case of Nepal Bangladesh Bank and NIC Asia Bank in terms of various operational ratios, since many operational ratios have been found weaker in postmerger period than pre-merger period. But merger plays a significant role in case of Machhapuchchhre Bank where almost all operational ratios have improved in post-merger. While analyzing the situation of overall commercial banking sectors, with the help of sampled data, it is observed that largely the merger isn't able to produce positive results for the merged entities. The study shows the reason for negative result of merger as the poor financial position of the target banks. Further the merger somewhat act as a solution for the current problems of Nepalese BFIs. Merger a wise option to bring BFIs in strong and growing position and to meet the requirement of current paid up capital as per the latest NRB directive. But it also must be considered that merger in itself is not the ultimate solution to strengthen the financial position of BFIs.

Awan & Mahmood (2015), conduct the study on impact of merger and acquisition on performance of commercial bank in Pakistan. This study concluded that the firm performance can take the influence of mergers and acquisitions deals as well. As for as this study analysis is concerned out of four measurement ratios all ratios remained positive solvency, liquidity, profitability and investment showed positive impact of mergers and acquisitions on firm performance. This study used ratios of two years earlier and two years after mergers and acquisitions deals and found overall positive impact but these results are of short time period. It is analyzed that mergers and acquisitions have impact on firm performance in the short time period and it is also possible this deal has impact on the firm performance in the long run. Sometimes organizations indulge in the mergers and acquisitions. It is also concluded that due to expansion in the business activities the organizations per unit cost go to decline.

Marembo (2012), conduct the thesis on the impact of mergers and acquisition on the financial performance of commercial banks in kenya. The study set to establish whether the many mergers that have happened in Kenya's banking Sector had influenced financial performance based on the causal research design. This study cover 28 commercial banks mergers during the period of 1994 to 2010 as a population. Collect the data from financial statement of selected banks. This study concluded that merger/acquisition brings about higher capital and customer base which important ingredients in firm performance. With increased commercial banks' stability and ability to lend, the commercial banks in turn make higher profits.

Adegbaju and Olokoyo (2008), conducted a study which investigated the impact of previous recapitalizations in the Nigerian banking system on the performance of banks. The study which covered all insured banks in Nigeria adopted a simple ratio analysis, using specifically profitability ratios, to evaluate the performance of banks three years before the 2001 recapitalization exercise and comparing it with the performance of the banks three years after the recapitalization exercise. The ratios used included: (a) Yield on earnings assets representing the percentage of return an institution receives on its earnings assets where earnings assets include all assets that generate explicit interest income or lease receipts and are defined as Total Assets less Non-Earning Assets. (b) Return on equity (that is, rate of return to the shareholders) measured as net income after taxes divided by total

equity capital. (c) Return on Assets (an indicator of managerial efficiency showing the capability of management to convert the assets of the bank into net earnings), defined as net income after taxes divided by total assets. The data were obtained from the Nigerian Deposit Insurance Corporation's annual reports. The data were analyzed with the t-statistic to test the equality of the means of the key profitability ratios of the pre- and post-2001 key profitability ratios of banks.

Modebe, Isibor & Okoye (2016), conduct the research on effect of merger and acquisition banking sector performance in Nigeria. This research study shows that i) there is no significant difference in the profit performance of the banking sector (as measured by return on assets) between the pre- and post-merger and acquisition periods (ii) there is evidence of significant increase in the pre- and post-merger and acquisition means of bank asset ratio (iii) there is a significant reduction in capital adequacy ratio between the periods. Following from the above findings, the study concludes that mergers and acquisitions have significant impact on the performance of the Nigerian banking sector. We therefore recommend that due diligence should adopted in the identification and selection of compatible partners in order to achieve synergy. In the case of policy-induced merger and acquisition, a reasonable time should be allowed for compliance and implementation should be closely monitored.

Patel (2017), conduct the research on pre & post-merger financial performance: an Indian perspective compares the before and after merger position of long term profitability with respect to selected Indian banks for a period of 2003-04 to 2013-2014. This study found a negative impact of merger on return on equity, return on assets, Net profit ratio, yield on advance and yield on investment. However, variables, namely, the Earnings per Share, Profit per employee and Business per employee have shown positive trend and grown after the merger. It has been observed that after the merger, the Assets, Equity, Investment and advances of all banks increases, but due to underutilization, their respective yield decreases. On a contrary, the business per employee and profit per employee have increased due to optimum utilization of human resources. By applying the Comparative Analysis, the paper also assesses the financial performance of acquiring bank with the banking industry. The Bank of Baroda and Oriental bank of commerce has found decreases

in Yield on Advances and yield on investment as compared to average of all banks in the post-merger period. State bank of India & IDBI Bank has higher business per employee and profit per employee as compared to industry average.

Mungai (2015), conduct the study on the effect of mergers and acquisitions on the financial performance of financial institutions in kenya. The purpose of this study was to establish the effect of mergers and acquisitions on the financial performance of financial institutions in Kenya. The study took the form of a causal research design since this was a cause effect form of relationship, population included 104 financial institutions, out of which purposive sampling was applied to select 25 financial institutions that had undergone mergers and acquisitions. Secondary data was collected from a total of 18 firms. Multivariate regression analysis and correlation were used to analyze the data. The findings reveal that before mergers and acquisitions took place, financial institutions in Kenya did not have strong liquidity and solvency. Their operating expenses also increased with increase in profitability. The portion of the financial performance that was explained by liquidity, solvency and operating expenses of the firms was very small before mergers and acquisitions. However, after mergers and acquisitions took place, the liquidity and solvency of the firms improved significantly thus enhancing their financial performance. The operating expenses of the firms after mergers and acquisitions also seem to decrease as the financial performance increases. A strong positive relationship was witnessed between the liquidity of the firms and their financial performance as well as between the solvency and financial performance. However, a moderate inverse relationship was evident between operating expenses and the financial performance.

Chalise (2017), conduct the on analysis of mergers and acquisitions on the Performance of commercial banks in Nepal. With the major objective of this study is to investigate whether the financial performance of the selected merged commercial bank (i.e. Global IME Bank) improved after the merger with CAMEL Criteria. Researcher concluded that Bank capital has bettered after the merger with negative mean and it was also was statistically significant. Increase in ROA shows that the capability of the management to converting the bank's assets into net earnings is increasing. The overall financial performance which

measure by the CAMEL variable significantly change after the merger and acquisition of Global IME bank.

Kemal (2011), has studied the post-merger profitability of Royal Bank of Scotland where he has used accounting ratios to analyze the financial performance of Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS) in Pakistan after merger with an aim to find out the answer of "Does merger of the banks improves the profitability?" The report has analyzed their financial statements for four years (2006-2009) by using 20 vital ratios which includes the ratios from profitability, liquidity, market value etc. The results show that the financial performance of RBS in the areas of profitability, liquidity, assets management, leverage and cash flows has been quite satisfactory before the merger deal. It means that merger deal fails to improve the financial performance of the bank. This conclusion may not be the result for all the banks, as others may gain profit or increase profitability from the mergers. But in case of this report of RBS in Pakistan, merger does not work for it.

Wanguru (2011), did a study on the effects of mergers and acquisition on the profitability of commercial banks in Kenya. Researcher analyzed the profitability of the banks for five years before and after the merger. A population of 33 banks that had merged between the period 1994 and 2010 were used. Profitability was measured in terms of return on asset (ROA) and return on equity (ROE). The findings were compared and the results tabulated for the years of study. It was observed that on average, the firm's profitability increased for the five year period prior the merger than before. Researcher concluded that mergers and acquisition for commercial banks leads to increased profitability for the resultant firm.

Ndora (2010), studied the effects of mergers and acquisitions on the financial performance of insurance companies in Kenya. A sample of six insurance companies that had merged between the year 1995 and 2005 were used from a population of 42 registered insurance companies in the country as at that time. To measure financial performance, profitability ratios, solvency ratios as well as capital adequacy s were computed for the firms. The information for five years before and after the merger was compared and the results tabulated. The findings indicated an increased financial performance by the firms for the five years after the merger than it was five years before the merger. It was concluded that

mergers and acquisition would result to an increase in the financial performance of an insurance company.

Misigah, (2013), carried out a study on the effect of mergers and acquisitions on growth of commercial banks in Kenya. The objective of this study was to examine the effects Mergers and Acquisitions (M&A) on growth of commercial banks in Kenya between the periods 2000 to 2010. The study was a survey involving commercial banks which have successfully completed merger and acquisition transactions since the year 2000-2010. The research instrument for collection of data was a questionnaire consisting of structured and unstructured questions. Secondary data was also used to obtain the required information. Documentary secondary data included reports to shareholders, administrative and public records. The study established that the variable which was significant on growth of commercial banks through mergers and acquisition was shareholders value and the growth in profitability.

Altunbas & Marques (2008), have observed the impact of strategic similarities between bidders and targets on post-merger financial performance. This article shows that on average, bank mergers in European Union have resulted in improved return on capital. They ran the empirical analysis by using an extensive sample of individual bank mergers which in turn, was linked to individual bank accounting information. They have found that there are improvements in performance after the merger has taken place particularly in the case of cross-border mergers. In terms of the impact of strategic relatedness on performance, the overall results show that broad similarities among merging partners are conducive to an improved performance, although there are important differences between domestic and cross-border mergers and across strategic dimensions.

Kivindu (2013), The objective of the study was to establish the effect of mergers and acquisitions on profitability of commercial banks in Kenya. The study adopted a descriptive research design and the population of interest comprised of all the 24 banks that merged or were acquired in Kenya during the study period of 2000 to 2010. The study revealed that institutions having weak capital base consolidate to create synergies so as to

enjoy economies of scale as this improve their profitability instead of going public by listing on the Nairobi Stock Exchange as this may be an expensive venture.

Maditinos alt. (2013), also carried out a study on the effect of mergers and acquisitions on the performance of companies. The study focused on two banks in Greece that had merged to form one bank. The main purpose of the study was to investigate the effects of the merger that took place in 1999 on the performance of the resultant bank. The study was carried in two parts. The first part analyzed the short term effects of the merger and the second part the long term effects of the merger. The findings from the study indicate that the resultant bank after the merger was not only profitable in the banking industry but was also more competitive than the other banks. However, the study revealed that the stock performance of the resulted bank is not the decisive factor to appreciate the performance of the bank, since the stock value is many times the result of speculative actions, wrong expectations or simply a game of the fortune.

Mantravadi & Reddy (2008), have done the study to understand which type of mergers have been more successful in improving the performance of merging firms, among horizontal mergers, vertical mergers and conglomerate mergers. The research study has adopted the methodology of comparing pre and post-merger performance of merging companies by using operating profit margin, gross profit margin, net profit margin, return on net worth, return on capital employed and debt equity ratio. The pre-merger (for three years prior to merger) and post-merger (for five years after the merger) averages of financial ratios are compared, and tested for differences, using paired "t" test for two samples. Comparison of post vs. premerger operating ratio, for the different types of mergers suggested that horizontal mergers have caused the highest decline in the operating performance of the merging companies, followed by conglomerate and vertical mergers, in that order.

Joash & Njangiru (2015), examined whether the merger had any effect on the banks' performance in Kenya. The study determine the effect of the mergers and acquisitions on the shareholders' value and to examine the implication of mergers and acquisitions on profitability.14 banks that have merged or acquired others in the period from 2000 to date

were investigated. Data was collected using questionnaires with both open and closed ended questions. The collected data was analyzed using SPSS where the co-efficient of correlation obtained. Study found that the mergers and acquisitions raised the shareholders' value of the merged/acquiring banks. Researcher recommended that thorough feasibility studies should be carried out before the merger/acquisition process can be done. It was also recommended that effect of mergers/acquisitions in other sectors of the economy should be established with a view of drawing a parallel with the effects of the same processes in the banking sector.

Dhakal (2015), after the Nepal Rastra Bank implemented the merger bylaws policy in 2011, Nepalese market was able to observe increasing trend in merger and acquisition in banking and financial institutions (BFIs) of Nepal. This study focused on the post-merger impact to the employees, customers and shareholders of the merged bank. The research method used in this study was descriptive research which implies the results based on the survey and the analysis. The impact on employees and customers were analyzed through questionnaires whereas the impact on shareholders was observed through analysis of financial data of merged bank in 2years of pre and post-merger phase. The results showed that employees were satisfied with work, wages, working conditions etc. but they were intensely worried about the HR issues like cultural clash, positions issues, socialization, favoritism etc. The customers felt the changes in value, product and service in post-merger phase but required more innovative service. The overall financial data showed that bank had improved a lot in post-merger phase hence increasing the shareholder's wealth.

A study by Chesang (2002), to determine the implications of merger restructuring on performance of banks in Kenya observed that merger restructuring has not led to an improvement of financial performance of the majority of the institutions that have undergone merger and acquisition. Capital adequacy and solvency ratios indicate highly on the financial performance of the banks that have merged or acquired others. This is because the ratios have legal implication. There was a decline in financial performance as was shown by the profitability ratios.

Adhikari (2014), a research paper published by NRB (2015), has performed an exploratory research to study the impact of merger on banks and financial institutions. NRB has used primary data from 550 respondents and secondary data for 3 years of pre- and post-merger period of 25 merged entities. The study concludes that major reason for financial institutions to go into merger is to increase their paid-up capital, expand the operational area as well as decrease the competition. Although the merger has positive changes in the employee satisfaction and work culture, it has created a delay in the process of decision making. The 6 financial indicators that NRB has used indicate a mixed result for the first two years i.e. positive changes in some BFIs and negative in some but when the 3rd year starts after merger the financial indicators show improvement for all the merged BFIs.

Singh & Gupta (2015), argue that there is significant difference in post-merger Net Profit Margin, Operating Profit Margin, Return on Capital Employed, Return on Net Worth, Interest Coverage, Deposit per Employee and Credit Deposit Ratio but non-significant difference with respect to Gross Profit Margin, Debt-Equity Ratio, Current Ratio, Quick Ratio, Earnings per Share. The study concludes that the banks have positive effects of merger on financial performance when distinguished between pre mergers and post-merger period.

Bakari (2011), conducted a study which examined the trend and growth implications of bank's recapitalization in Nigeria using secondary data which were analyzed with the aid of t-statistic and test of equality of means for the period before and after recapitalization. The results showed that that there was a significant difference between the two means and hence the two periods. The results indicated that the post-recapitalization's mean was higher than that of the pre recapitalization, implying that banks were more adequately capitalized and less risky after the programed. The result also indicated that recapitalization had low but significant influence on the growth of the Nigerian economy.

Chellasamy & Ponsabariraj (2014), analyses the performance evaluation of mergers and acquisition of scheduled commercial banks in India. The paper analyses the pre and postmerger financial performance of the banks which are merged by using various financial parameter like return on assets, return on equity, profitability ratios, current ratios etc. The study covers the period from 1999-2000 to 2010-2011. A paired t-test has been applied to find out the significant relationship between the profitability and liquidity performance of pre and post-merger and Acquisitions of selected commercial banks in India. The study further concludes that there is no greater changes in the financial performance after merger.

Gupta (2015), evaluated the impact of mergers and acquisition by studying various ratios i.e. Profitability Indicator, Efficiency Indicator and Performance Indicator of the selected banks. The study has taken two cases one is merger of BOR and ICICI Bank and another case is the merger between CBOP and HDFC Bank. The results of the study indicates that in the first case of merger between BOR and ICICI Bank there is a significant improvement in the performance of banks in terms of net profit margin, return on assets, net interest margin, capital adequacy ratio, CASA and cost to income but there is no significant change seen in total income/capital employed, return on equity and credit deposit ratio. In the second case of merger between Centurion Bank of Punjab and HDFC Banks, there is a significant improvement in terms of Net profit margin, return on assets, return on equity, credit deposit ratio, CASA, cost to income but no change has been seen in total income/capital adequacy ratio adequacy ratio which net interest margin shows negative change in post-merger period.

Alam *et al.* (2014), examines the various factors which affects the performance of banks after acquisition. The study focused on 47 acquired banks and 33 acquiring banks in ASEAN from 2003 to 2011 by applying matching strategy. The data for banks is obtained from bank scope (Global database of financial Institutions). The macroeconomic and institutional data are obtained from World Bank and Heritage foundation. The study focuses on selected banks. Some specific variables have been taken due to data availability. The study selected independent variables on the basis of CAMEL model. It concluded that before financial crises, the acquired banks are found to have greater loan activities. The study shows that financial crises bring about a change in the factors which affects the banks performance after acquisition.

Tamragundi & Devarajjappa (2016), in the study "Impact of mergers on Indian Banking sector: A comparative study of Public and Private sector Banks" examines the impact of

mergers on Physical performance of merged banks, Financial performance of merged banks and share price performance. For the purpose of analysis 6 Indian commercial banks have been taken. Out of 6 banks three banks are merger of public sector with private sector banks and three are merger of private sector banks with private sector banks. Analysis has been done on secondary data based on Camel model by using various statistical tools like mean, standard deviation, T-test. The study reveals that merger is a useful strategy for expanding business operations and the overall growth of the business.

Joshua (2011), analyzed the impact of mergers and acquisitions on financial efficiency of banks of Nigeria. The study is based on secondary data by using various financial parameters like gross earnings, profit after tax and net assets of selected banks. Analysis has been done by using T-test through SPSS. The results further concluded an increased financial performance which leads to improved financial efficiency. The t-test result depicted an increase in their combined mean for gross earnings and net earnings but profit after tax recorded a decline.

Murthy (2007), evaluated the M&A of five selected banks. It evaluated the case of Punjab National Bank and New Bank of India, ICICI Bank and Bank of Madura, ICICI Ltd. and ICICI Bank, Global Trust Bank and Oriental Bank of Commerce and Centurion Bank with Bank of Punjab. The researcher concluded that M&A is important for creating a stronger financial and operational structure, creates higher resources for firms, it widens branch network, create huge customer base, technological advantage, focus on priority sector, and penetration in rural market. It also examined various other determinants like human resources, how to manage clients for the above selected banks.

Ghosh & Dutta (2015), states that Mergers and Acquisitions as a smart means of corporate restructuring. The study explores the overall strategic impact of mergers and acquisitions in the banking sector. The study focused on 20 M&A deals in the Indian banking sector during 2000-2010. The study is based on pre and post- merger comparison of HR and Financial parameters. For the purpose of analysis the ratios for each of the performance parameters were estimated for all the ten mergers individually followed by Shapiro-walk

normality test. The findings of the study indicates a non-significant change in performance in the post- merger period.

# 2.3 Research gap

After review the past article and thesis, impact on merger on financial performance of commercial banks. This research study is mainly differ than the previous research study due to the following reason.

- 1. This research focus on both measuring comparative financial performance and effect of merger on Performance of bank.
- 2. The ratios used ROA, ROE, EPS, Profit Margin, Assets Quality, loan and advance to total deposit, debt to equity ratio, Capital adequacy position to measure the financial performance of merged commercial banks which are different than the past researcher.
- 3. Past researcher cover the data up to 2016 AD only and his study cover the data form fiscal year 2012/13 to 2017/18.
- 4. The sample used in research study are Bank of Kathmandu Limited, NMB Bank and Siddhartha Bank Limited, which are different than the past research article and thesis.
# **CHAPTER III**

# **RESEARCH METHODOLOGY**

## 3.1 Research design

This research used descriptive and analytical research design in order to examine impact of merger on the financial performance of commercial banks. The methods of research utilize in descriptive research are survey method of all kinds, including comparative and co-relation methods. In analytical research, on the other hand, the researcher has to use facts or information already available, and analyses these to make critical evaluation of the material.

# **3.2 Population and sampling**

**Population:** The populations for this research are all the commercial banks which are marched after the merger and acquisition bylaw 2011 AD implemented. According to the monetary policy 2019/20 AD, in line with the Merger & Acquisition Policy of this Bank, a total of 171 BFIs have undergone through the merger/acquisition process as of mid-July 2019. Out of these, license of 128 institutions has been revoked thereby forming 43 institutions. Among them 12 are the commercial banks. These 12 merged commercial banks are taken as the population for the study.

**Sample:** Out of 12 merged commercial banks, three commercial banks, NMB bank, bank of Kathmandu Lumbini Limited (BOK), Siddhartha Bank Limited (SBL) which all are merged in 2015 AD are selected as sample by using systematic random sampling. The sample size of this study is three and sampling interval of this study is 4<sup>th</sup>, which is calculate dividing size of population by size of sample. Every 4<sup>th</sup> element in the population is chosen starting form a random point in the population frame.

#### **3.3 Data collection and processing procedure**

This research examine the impact of merger on financial performance of commercial bank. For this purpose secondary data are used, data are collected from the only the financial statement of the selected banks Bank of Kathmandu, NMB Bank and Siddhartha Bank Limited 3 year before and after the merger and acquisition. For pre-merger financial performance analysis only the data and information are collected only form annual report of Bank of Kathmandu Limited, NMB Bank Limited and Siddhartha Bank Limited. The data and information of other financial institutions which are merged with these banks are ignore for pre-merger financial analysis. For the post-merger period, the focus of the analysis was on the combined institution.

#### 3.4 Data analysis tools and techniques

In order to measure the impact of merger, the average performance of the three premerger years (T-3, T-2, T-1) is compared with the average performance of the three post-merger years (T+1, T+2, T+3) of the respective banks. The year of merger is indicated by T0 and is not included in the performance evaluation in order to eliminate the effect of the merger cost. Accounting ratios used to analyze the financial performance of the 3 banks under study. For the pre-merger period ratios, data and information only Bank of Kathmandu Limited, NMB Bank Limited and Siddhartha Bank Limited is collected and examined to get an indication of the relative financial performance. For the post-merger period, the focus of the analysis was on the combined institution. Pre-merger average data (m1) was compared with the post-merger average data (m2) to determine what changes occurred in financial performance following the merger or the acquisition. The researcher then conducted a multivariate regression analysis to establish the relationship between the dependent and independent variables.

## Statistical tools.

**Mean:** Mean is the value, which represents the group of values and gives an idea about the concentration of values in the central part of the distribution. An average gives us a point

which is most representative of the data. It is sum of all the observations divided by the number of observations.

Mathematically, Mean 
$$(\overline{X}) = \frac{\sum X}{N}$$

**Standard deviation:** Standard deviation is a statistical measure of the variability of a distribution of return around its mean. It is the square root of the variance and measure the unsystematic risk. A small standard deviation means a high degree of uniformity of the observation. It is denoted by Greek letter called sigma ( $\sigma$ ).

Mathematically, Standard deviation  $(\sigma) = \sqrt{\frac{\sum (X - \overline{X})^2}{N - 1}}$ 

**Correlation coefficient:** Correlation coefficient is a relative measure of co-movements between variables. It is the measurement of linear relationship between two or more variables. Its values lie between -1 and +1. Mathematically,

Correlation coefficient (r) = 
$$\frac{N\sum XY - (\sum X)(\sum Y)}{\sqrt{N\sum X^2 - (\sum X)^2}} \sqrt{N\sum Y^2 - (\sum Y)^2}$$

**Regression:** The statistical technique which studies the average relationship between two or more variables in terms of original unit of data is called regression analysis. The simple regression analysis describes the average relationship between only two variables. It measures per unit change. The multiple regressions are a logical extension of the simple linear regression analysis. Instead of single independent variable, two or more independent variables are used to estimate the unknown values of a dependent variable.

$$Y = a + bX$$

a = Constant

 $b = Beta \ coefficient$ 

### **Financial tools**

**Return on assets:** Return on Assets measures the net income on each rupees of assets. This ratio measures overall profitability from investment in assets. Return on assets is calculated as a ratio between Net Income and Average Total Assets. It indicates the efficiency of the banks by utilizing their assets in generating profits. The higher ratio is better for the firm.

**Return on equity**: Return on equity is net profit after taxes divided by shareholder's equity which is given by net worth. It is a measure of how well management has used the capital invested by the shareholders. ROE is sometimes called "return on net worth.

**Profit margin:** Profit margin is measure of how well management has generating operating revenue. It is calculated as net income divided by total operating revenue. Higher this ratio better for the firm

**Earnings per share:** Earnings per share is calculated as dividing earning available to share holder by total share outstanding.

**Capital adequacy**: Capital adequacy is one of the elements that indicate the measurement of financial strength of a bank. It is the capital position of the bank which somewhat assure depositors that they compensated if any failure occurs. The capital adequacy is extracted from annual report which is calculated as the ratio of regulatory capital (tier I + tier II) to total risk weighted assets.

CAR= (Tier I+ Tier II) capital/Total risk weighted assets

Assets quality: To address the asset quality, non-performing loans to total loans (NPL) is used in this study. Non-performing loans (loans which are considered not to generate earnings) to total loans ratio measures the asset quality of bank. In other words, it reflected the health of bank's loan portfolio that affects performance of bank negatively. The higher the NPL ratio the poorer the quality of loan portfolio and therefore it leaded to lower profitability.

Liquidity: Liquidity is a crucial aspect which reflects bank's ability to meet its financial obligations and to maintain adequate level of liquid assets, which otherwise result in

decline in the earnings. An adequate liquidity position can be obtained either by increasing liabilities or by converting its assets quickly into cash. Bank has to take proper measures to hedge the liquidity risk, at the same time securing good proportion of funds to be invested in high return generating securities. Firms with high liquidity have greater freedom to invest than the firm with low liquidity, but such firms hold on their earnings at a higher opportunity cost. Liquidity can be defined as a reserve to protect the bank from unforeseen contingencies. To address the Liquidity two ratios is used in this study: Total loan/Total deposit and total debt to shareholder equity. As loans was one of the main source of income of a bank, the ratio total loan and advance to total deposit show the liquidity position of bank. Similarly debt to equity ratios also show the long term solvency position of the bank.

Variable	Measure
Profitability	$ROA = \frac{Net \ Income}{Total \ Assets}$
	$ROE = \frac{Net \ Income}{Share \ holder \ equity}$
	Profit margin = $\frac{NI}{TOR}$
Earnings per share	EPS Earning availabel to shareholders Total share outstanding
Capital Adequacy	$C = \frac{Tier I + Tier II}{Total Risk Weighted assets}$
Assets quality	$A = \frac{NPA}{TLA}$
Total loan and advance to total deposit ratio	$L = \frac{Total \ Loan \ and \ Advance}{Total \ Deposit}$
Debt equity ratio	Total debt = $\frac{Total \ debt}{Shareholder \ equity}$

# **CHAPTER IV**

# RESULTS

# 4.1 Data presentation and analysis

In order to measure the impact of merger, the average performance of the three premerger years (T-3, T-2, T-1) is compared with the average performance of the three post-merger years (T+1, T+2, T+3) of the respective banks. The year of merger is indicated by T0 and is not included in the performance evaluation in order to eliminate the effect of the merger cost.

# 4.1.1 Pre and post-merger comparison of performance

## 4.1.1.1 Return on assets

Return on Assets measures the net income on each rupees of assets. It is calculated as a ratio between Net Income and Average Total Assets, which the efficiency of the banks by utilizing their assets in generating profits. Higher this ratios show the better profitability positon of banks.

BANKS	Before	e Merge	er			After Merger				
	T-3	T-2	T-1	Mean	Std.	T+1	T+2	T+3	Mean	Std.
BOK	0.65	0.74	0.84	0.74	0.1	1.57	1.45	1.45	1.49	0.06
MNB	1.43	1.36	1.21	1.33	0.1	1.49	1.69	1.65	1.61	0.11
SBL	1.43	1.74	1.51	1.56	0.16	1.69	1.54	1.59	1.61	0.08
Mean	1.17	1.28	1.19	1.21	1.21	1.58	1.56	1.56	1.57	0.08
Std.	0.45	0.5	0.34	0.42		0.1	0.12	0.1	0.07	

Table 4.1.1	Return	on	assets
-------------	--------	----	--------

Sources: Annual report of respected banks from 2012/13 to 2017/18 AD

Table 4.1.1 shows the return on assets of sampled merged commercial banks before and after the merger. The average ROA of BOK before and after is 0.74 and 1.49 respectively

which shows that ROA is increased after the merger. Similarly NMB has 1.33 average ROA before the merger and 1.61 after the merger which shows that ROA of NMB banks increase after the merger. Similarly the average ROA of SBL is 1.56 and 1.61 respectively before and after the merger and standardization is 0.16 and 0.08 respectively. It show that return on assets of NMB also increase after the merger. Average ROA of commercial banks before merger and after merger is 1.21 and 1.57 respectively. Which shows that return on assets of commercial banks increase after the merger.

#### 4.1.1.2 Return on equity

Return on equity used to measure the profitability position of the commercial banks before and after the merger. ROE is net profit after taxes divided by shareholder's equity which is given by net worth. It is a measure of how well management has used the capital invested by the shareholders. Higher this ratios show the better profitability positon of banks.

BANKS	Before	Merger				After Merger				
	T-3	T-2	T-1	Mean	Std.	T+1	T+2	T+3	Mean	Std.
BOK	0	13.23	16.44	14.84	8.72	22.18	23.74	18.74	21.55	2.56
NMB	27.27	26.75	28.7	27.57	1.01	31.95	30.11	31.82	31.29	1.03
SBL	41.72	54.19	50.78	48.90	6.44	44.85	32.37	13.90	30.37	15.57
Mean	34.50	31.39	31.97	30.44	5.39	32.99	28.74	21.49	27.74	5.82
Std.	10.22	20.87	17.40	17.21		11.37	4.48	9.27	5.38	

Table 4.1.2 return on equity

Sources: Annual report of respected banks from 2012/13 to 2017/18 AD

From the table 4.1.2 return on equity of BOK before merger and after merger is 14.84 and 21.55 respectively and standard deviation is 8.72 and 2.09 respectively. Similarly the ROE of NMB bank before merger and after merger is 27.57 and 22.98 respectively, standard deviation is 1.01 and 13.98 respectively. Similarly the return on equity of NMB bank before merger and after merger is 27.57 and 31.29 respectively and its standard deviation is 1.01 and 1.03, similarly average ROE of SBL bank is 48.90 and 30.37 respectively before and after the merger. Mean return on equity of sampled banks is 30.44 before the merger and 27.74 after the merger and its standard deviation is 5.39 and 5.82 respectively.

#### **4.1.1.3 Earning per share**

Earnings per share is another ratios used to measure the profitability position of commercial banks in Nepal before and after the merged. It is calculated as dividing earning available to share holder by total share outstanding. Higher this ratios indicate the better profitability positon of commercial banks and vice-versa.

BANKS	Before	Merger				After Merger				
Difficit	T-3	T-2	T-1	Mean	Std.	T+1	T+2	T+3	Mean	Std.
BOK	13.25	15.78	14.86	14.63	1.28	20.69	19.46	20.69	20.28	0.58
NMB	18.02	20.5	25.05	21.19	3.57	27.79	26.88	28.67	27.78	0.9
SBL	29.80	38.63	37.77	35.40	4.87	41.53	18.82	26.45	28.93	11.56
Mean	20.36	24.97	25.89	23.74	3.24	30.00	21.72	25.27	25.66	4.16
Std.	8.52	12.06	11.48	10.62		10.59	4.48	4.12	4.70	

Table 4.1.3: Earnings per share

Sources: Annual report of respected banks from 2012/13 to 2017/18 AD

Table 4.1.3 shows the earning per share of sampled commercial banks before and after the merger. The average earning per share of BOK is 14.63 before the merger and 20.28 after the merger. Standard deviation is 1.28 and 0.58 respectively. Similarly average EPS of NMB bank is 21.19 and 27.78 respectively before and after the merger and its standard deviation is 3.57 and 0.9 respectively. Likewise the average EPS of the SBL is 35.40 before merger and 28.93 after the merger, its standard deviation is 4.87 before merger and 11.56 after the merger. Average EPS of selected commercial bank before merger and after merger is 23.74 and 25.66 respectively and standard deviation is 3.24 before the merger and 4.16 after the merger. Means show that earning per share increase after the merged of the commercial banks in Nepal.

#### **4.1.1.4 Profit margin**

Profit margin is measure of how well management has generating operating revenue. It is calculated as net income divided by total operating revenue. Higher this ratio better for the firm.

BANKS	Before	Merger				After Merger				
Difficito	T-3	T-2	T-1	Mean	Std.	T+1	T+2	T+3	Mean	Std.
BOK	37.85	15.36	25.3	26.17	11.3	33.22	40.4	33.75	35.79	3.27
NMB	58.85	60.23	59.77	59.62	0.7	68.09	66.82	41.24	58.72	15.15
SBL	47.07	59.72	60.22	55.67	7.45	70.93	66.28	40.90	59.37	16.16
Mean	47.92	45.10	48.43	47.15	6.47	57.41	57.83	38.63	51.29	10.97
Std.	10.53	25.76	20.03	18.28		21.00	15.10	4.23	13.43	

Table 4.1.4: profit margin

Sources: Annual report of respected banks from 2012/13 to 2017/18 AD

Table 4.1.4 show the profit margin of selected commercial banks in Nepal. Average profit margin of BOK before the merger is 25.3 and standard deviation is 11.3 and after the merger mean profit margin is 35.79, standard deviation is 3.27, which shows that average profit margin of BOK is increase after the merger. Similarly the profit margin of NMB bank before the merger is 59.62 and after the merger is 58.72, its standard deviation is 0.7 before the merger and 15.15 after the merger. Similarly the average profit margin of SBL before and after the merger is 55.67 and 59.37 respectively and standard deviation is 7.45 and 16.16 respectively before and after the merger and 51.29 after the merger. And its standard deviation is 6.47 and 1.97 respectively.

#### 4.1.1.5 Assets quality

To address the asset quality, non-performing loans to total loans (NPL) is used in this study. Non-performing loans (loans which are considered not to generate earnings) to total loans ratio measures the asset quality of bank. In other words, it reflected the health of bank's loan portfolio that affects performance of bank negatively. The higher the NPL ratio the poorer the quality of loan portfolio and therefore it leaded to lower profitability.

Table 4.1.5 show the assets quality of selected commercial banks in Nepal. Average assets quality of BOK before the merger is 2.01 and standard deviation is 1.28 and after the merger mean assets quality is 1.87, standard deviation is 0.82, which shows that average assets quality which means non-performing assets of BOK is decrease after the merger. Similarly the assets quality of NMB bank before the merger is 0.42 and after the merger is 1.46, its standard deviation is 0.92 before the merger and 0.5 after the merger. Similarly the average assets quality of SBL before and after the merger is 2.31 and 1.29 respectively and standard deviation is 0.48 and 0.19 respectively before and after the merger. Average assets quality of selected commercial banks is 1.75 before the merger and 1.54 after the merger. And its standard deviation is 0.84 and 046 respectively.

BANKS	Befor	e Merge	er			After Merger					
	T-3	T-2	T-1	Mean	Std.	T+1	T+2	T+3	Mean	Std.	
BOK	1.06	3.47	1.51	2.01	1.28	1.29	3.04	1.29	1.87	0.82	
NMB	1.8	0.55	0.42	0.92	0.76	1.81	1.68	0.88	1.46	0.5	
SBL	2.39	2.75	1.80	2.31	0.48	1.47	1.30	1.09	1.29	0.19	
Mean	1.75	2.26	1.24	1.75	0.84	1.52	2.01	1.09	1.54	0.46	
Std.	0.67	1.52	0.73	0.73		0.26	0.91	0.21	0.30		

Table 4.1.5: Assets quality

Sources: Annual report of respected banks from 2012/13 to 2017/18 AD

#### 4.1.1.6 Total loan and advance to total deposit ratio.

Total loan and advance to total deposit ratio is used to measure the liquidity position of sampled commercial banks in Nepal. Table

Form table 4.1.6 the average total loan and advance to total deposit ratio of BOK is 0.84 before the merger and 0.86 after the merger. This shows that loan and advance of BOK is increase as compared to deposit after the merger its standard deviation is 0.01 and 0.02 respectively before and after the merger. Similarly average total loan and advance to total

deposit ratios of NMB bank is 0.74 and 0.85 respectively before and after the merger and its standard deviation is 0.01 and 0.04 respectively per-merger and post-merger. Likewise the average total loan and advance to total deposit ratios of SBL is 0.82 before the merger and 0.88 after the merger its standard deviation is 0.02 and 0.02 respectively. The average total loan and advance to total deposit of sampled commercial banks in Nepal is 0.80 and 0.87 respectively before and after the merger.

BANKS	Before	e Merge	er			After Merger					
DAINES	T-3	T-2	T-1	Mean	Std.	T+1	T+2	T+3	Mean	Std.	
BOK	0.84	0.85	0.85	0.84	0.01	0.86	0.84	0.88	0.86	0.02	
NMB	0.74	0.76	0.74	0.75	0.01	0.82	0.84	0.89	0.85	0.04	
SBL	0.83	0.79	0.83	0.82	0.02	0.87	0.87	0.90	0.88	0.02	
Mean	0.80	0.80	0.81	0.80	0.01	0.85	0.85	0.89	0.86	0.02	
Std.	0.06	0.05	0.06	0.05		0.03	0.02	0.01	0.02		

4.1.6: total loan and advance to total deposit ratio.

Sources: Annual report of respected banks from 2012/13 to 2017/18 AD

## 4.1.1.7 Capital adequacy position

Capital adequacy is one of the elements that indicate the measurement of financial strength of a bank. It is the capital position of the bank which somewhat assure depositors that they will be compensated if any failure occurs. Higher this ratios is better.

BANKS	Before	Merger			After Merger					
Drittig	T-3	T-2	T-1	Mean	Std.	T+1	T+2	T+3	Mean	Std.
BOK	11.57	13	13.01	12.53	0.83	13.41	14.88	13.41	13.9	0.69
NMB	11.74	10.75	11.13	11.21	0.5	10.98	13.61	15.75	13.45	2.39
SBL	11.80	13.39	11.10	12.10	1.17	11.25	12.74	12.12	12.04	0.75
Mean	11.70	12.38	11.75	11.95	0.83	11.88	13.74	13.76	13.13	1.08
Std.	0.12	1.43	1.09	0.67		1.33	1.08	1.84	0.97	

Table 4.1.7 Capital adequacy positon

Sources: Annual report of respected banks from 2012/13 to 2017/18 AD

Table 4.1.7 show the capital adequacy s of sampled banks. The average capital adequacy position of BOK before the merger is 12.53 and 13.9 after the merger and its standard deviation is 0.83, and 0.69 respectively pre-merger and post-merger. Similarly the average capital adequacy s of NMB banks is 11.21 and 13.45 respectively before and after the merger and its standard deviation pre-merger is 0.5 and post-merger is 2.39. Similarly SBL has 11.10 and 12.04 average capital adequacy position respectively before and after the merger and its standard deviation is 1.17 and 0.75 pre-merger and post-merger. Average capital adequacy s of selected commercial banks is 11.95 pre- merger and 13.13 post-merger.

## 4.1.1.8 Debt to equity ratio

Debt to equity ratio is used to measure the long term solvency position of commercial banks. Higher the ratio means higher the debt employed by the bank as compared to equity, which show the lower solvency positon of banks.

BANKS	KS Before Merger						After Merger					
	T-3	T-2	T-1	Mean	Std.	T+1	T+2	T+3	Mean	Std.		
BOK		18.48	9.97	14.22	6.02	15.76	13.3	11.13	13.4	1.89		
NMB	11.25	11.41	13.92	12.19	1.5	12.27	10.01	9.93	10.74	1.33		
SBL	17.09	18.25	19.26	18.20	1.09	15.25	10.55	11.69	12.50	2.45		
Mean	14.17	16.05	14.38	14.87	2.87	14.43	11.29	10.92	12.21	1.93		
Std.	4.13	4.02	4.66	3.06		1.89	1.76	0.90	1.35			

Table 4.1.8: Debt equity ratio

Sources: Annual report of respected banks from 2012/13 to 2017/18 AD

Form the table 4.1.8 the average debt to equity ratios of BOK is 14.22 and 13.4 respectively before merger and after merger and its standard deviation is 6.02 and 1.8 respectively. Similarly the average debt to equity ratio of NMB bank is 12.19 and 10.74 respectively before and after the merger. Likewise the average debt to equity ratio of SBL is 18.20 and 12.50 respectively before and after the merger. The average debt to equity ratios of commercial banks is 14.87 before the merger and 12.21 after the merger.

## 4.2 Hypothesis testing (t-Test)

## 4.2.1 Paired two Sample t-test for means performance ROA.

H<sub>0</sub>: There is no significant difference in the return on assets between pre and post-merger of banks.

H<sub>1</sub>: There is significant difference in the return on assets between pre and post-merger of banks.

Table 4.2.1 shows the results of hypothesis testing applying the paired t-test statistic to measure the change between the pre and post-merger means of respective ratios. Mean performance of return on assets is increased in the post-merger period and the difference in the pre and post-merger averages ( $\mu$ 1 and  $\mu$ 2) is found statistically significant at 5% level of significance, t-Stat i.e. 3.030 is greater than t-Critical value i.e. 2.03 thus, H<sub>0</sub> is rejected and the alternative hypothesis, H1 is accepted, i.e. there is a significant difference in return on assets after the merger. Correlation analysis shows that there is significant positive correlation between pre-merger ROA and post-merger ROA i.e. it has 0.408.

	Pre-merger	Post-merger
Mean	1.212	1.569
Variance	0.145	0.009
Observations	9.000	9.000
Pearson Correlation	0.408	
t Stat	3.030	
P(T<=t) one-tail	0.008	
t Critical one-tail	1.860	
P(T<=t) two-tail	0.016	
t Critical two-tail	2.306	

Table 4.2.1 t-Test: paired two sample for means ROA

Sources: SPSS

## 4.2.2 Paired two sample t-test for mean performance of ROE.

H<sub>0</sub>: There is no significant difference in the ROE between pre and post-merger of banks. H<sub>1</sub>: There is significant difference in the ROE between pre and post-merger of banks.

Table 4.2.2 shows the results of hypothesis testing applying the paired t-test statistic to measure the change between the pre and post-merger means performance of ROE. Mean performance of return on equity is decreased in the post-merger period and the difference in the pre and post-merger averages ( $\mu$ 1 and  $\mu$ 2) is found statistically insignificant at 5% level of significance, t-Stat i.e. 0.178 is less than t-Critical value i.e. 2.306 thus, H<sub>0</sub> is rejected and the alternative hypothesis, H1 is accepted, i.e. there is an insignificant difference in return on equity after the merger. Correlation analysis shows that there is insignificant positive correlation.

	Pre-merger	Post-merger
Mean	28.787	27.740
Variance	315.736	84.204
Observations	9.000	9.000
Pearson Correlation	0.273	
df	8.000	
t Stat	0.178	
P(T<=t) one-tail	0.432	
t Critical one-tail	1.860	
P(T<=t) two-tail	0.863	
t Critical two-tail	2.306	

Table 4.2.2 t-test: paired two sample for means performance of ROE

Sources: SPSS

## 4.2.3 Paired two sample t-test for mean performance of EPS.

H<sub>0</sub>: There is no significant difference in the EPS between pre and post-merger of banks.

H<sub>1</sub>: There is significant difference in the EPS between pre and post-merger of banks.

Table 4.2.3 shows the results of hypothesis testing applying the paired t-test statistic to measure the change between the pre and post-merger means performance of EPS. Mean

performance of EPS is increased in the post-merger period and the difference in the pre and post-merger averages ( $\mu$ 1 and  $\mu$ 2) is found statistically insignificant at 5% level of significance, t-Stat i.e. -0.551 is less than t-Critical value i.e. 1.860 thus, there is a insignificant difference in EPS after the merger. Correlation analysis shows that there is insignificant positive correlation.

	Pre-merger	Post-merger
Mean	23.740	25.664
Variance	94.058	50.274
Observations	9.000	9.000
Pearson Correlation	0.252	
Df.	8.000	
t Stat	-0.551	
P(T<=t) one-tail	0.298	
t Critical one-tail	1.860	
P(T<=t) two-tail	0.596	
t Critical two-tail	2.306	

Table 4.2.3 t-test:	paired two	sample for mean	ns performance	e of EPS
---------------------	------------	-----------------	----------------	----------

Sources: SPSS

# 4.2.4 Paired two sample t-test for mean performance of profit margin

H<sub>0</sub>: There is no significant difference in the PM between pre and post-merger of banks.

H<sub>1</sub>: There is significant difference in the PM between pre and post-merger of banks.

Table 4.2.4 shows the results of hypothesis testing applying the paired t-test statistic to measure the change between the pre and post-merger means performance of PM. Mean performance of PM is increased in the post-merger period and the difference in the pre and post-merger averages ( $\mu$ 1=47.152 and  $\mu$ 2=51.292) is found statistically insignificant at 5% level of significance, t-Stat i.e. -0.781 is less than t-Critical value i.e. 1.860 thus, there is an insignificant difference in PM after the merger. Correlation analysis shows that there is insignificant high degree of positive correlation i.e. it has 0.548.

	Pre-merger	Post-merger
Mean	47.152	51.292
Variance	296.324	261.947
Observations	9.000	9.000
Pearson Correlation	0.548	
Df.	8.000	
t Stat	-0.781	
P(T<=t) one-tail	0.229	
t Critical one-tail	1.860	
P(T<=t) two-tail	0.457	
t Critical two-tail	2.306	

Table 4.2.4 t-test: paired two sample for means performance of PM

Sources: SPSS

# 4.2.5 Paired two sample t-test for mean performance of assets quality.

H<sub>0</sub>: There is no significant difference in the AQ between pre and post-merger of banks.

H<sub>1</sub>: There is significant difference in the AQ between pre and post-merger of banks.

	Pre-merger	Post-merger
Mean	1.750	1.539
Variance	1.014	0.396
Observations	9.000	9.000
Pearson Correlation	0.637	
Df.	8.000	
t Stat	0.815	
P(T<=t) one-tail	0.219	
t Critical one-tail	1.860	
P(T<=t) two-tail	0.438	
t Critical two-tail	2.306	

Table 4.2.5 t-test: paired two sample for means performance of AQ

Sources: SPSS

Table 4.2.5 shows the results of hypothesis testing applying the paired t-test statistic to measure the change between the pre and post-merger means performance of AQ. Mean performance of AQ is decreased in the post-merger period and the difference in the pre and post-merger averages ( $\mu$ 1 and  $\mu$ 2) is found statistically insignificant at 5% level of significance, t-Stat i.e. 0.815 is less than t-Critical value i.e. 1.860 thus, there is an insignificant difference in AQ after the merger. Decrease in assets quality, which is measured by the non-performing assets to total loan and advance, which shows that nonperformance assets of bank is decreased after the merger. Correlation analysis shows that there is insignificant high degree of positive correlation.

## 4.2.6 Paired two sample t-test for mean performance of liquidity position

H<sub>0</sub>: There is no significant difference in the Liquidity between pre and post-merger of banks.

H<sub>1</sub>: There is significant difference in the Liquidity between pre and post-merger of banks.

	Pre-merger	Post-merger
Mean	0.803	0.863
Variance	0.002	0.001
Observations	9.000	9.000
Pearson Correlation	0.280	
df	8.000	
t Stat	-3.882	
P(T<=t) one-tail	0.002	
t Critical one-tail	1.860	
P(T<=t) two-tail	0.005	
t Critical two-tail	2.306	

Table 4.2.6 t-test: paired two sample for means performance of liquidity

Sources: SPSS

Table 4.2.6 shows the results of hypothesis testing applying the paired t-test statistic to measure the change between the pre and post-merger means performance of liquidity which is measured by total loan and advance to total deposit. Mean performance of

liquidity is increased in the post-merger period and the difference in the pre and postmerger averages ( $\mu$ 1=0.803 and  $\mu$ 2=0.863) is found statistically insignificant at 1% level of significance, t-Stat i.e. -3.882 and t-Critical value i.e. 2.306 thus, there is an insignificant difference in liquidity after the merger. Correlation analysis shows that there is insignificant positive correlation between pre-merger and post-merger performance.

#### 4.2.7 Paired two sample t-test for mean performance of D/E ratio.

H<sub>0</sub>: There is no significant difference in the D/E ratio between pre and post-merger of banks.

H<sub>1</sub>: There is significant difference in the D/E ratio between pre and post-merger of banks.

Table 4.2.7 shows the results of hypothesis testing applying the paired t-test statistic to measure the change between the pre and post-merger means performance of D/E ratio. Mean performance of D/E is increased in the post-merger period and the difference in the pre and post-merger averages ( $\mu$ 1= 15.294 and  $\mu$ 2 = 12.797) is found statistically insignificant at 5% level of significance, t-Stat i.e. 0.988 is less than t-Critical value i.e. 1.860 thus, there is an insignificant difference in D/E ratios after the merger. Correlation analysis shows that there is insignificant high degree of positive correlation.

	Pre-merger	Post-merger
Mean	15.294	12.797
Variance	40.973	4.549
Observations	9.000	9.000
Pearson Correlation	-0.440	
df	8.000	
t Stat	0.988	
P(T<=t) one-tail	0.176	
t Critical one-tail	1.860	
P(T<=t) two-tail	0.352	
t Critical two-tail	2.306	

Table 4.2.7 t-test: paired two sample for means performance of D/E ratio

Sources: SPSS

## 4.2.8 Paired two sample t-test for mean performance of capital adequacy position

H<sub>0</sub>: There is no significant difference in the CAR between pre and post-merger of banks.

H<sub>1</sub>: There is significant difference in the CAR between pre and post-merger of banks.

Table 4.2.8 shows the results of hypothesis testing applying the paired t-test statistic to measure the change between the pre and post-merger means performance of CAR. Mean performance of CAR is decreased in the post-merger period and the difference in the pre and post-merger averages ( $\mu$ 1= 14.274 and  $\mu$ 2=12.811) is found statistically insignificant at 5% level of significance, t-Stat i.e. 0.815 is less than t-Critical value i.e. 1.860 thus, there is an insignificant difference in CA after the merger. Correlation analysis shows that there is insignificant low degree of negative correlation between capital adequacy pre-merger and post-merger.

	Pre-merger	Post-merger
Mean	14.274	12.811
Variance	9.513	2.529
Observations	9.000	9.000
Pearson Correlation	-0.168	
df	8.000	
t Stat	1.186	
P(T<=t) one-tail	0.135	
t Critical one-tail	1.860	
P(T<=t) two-tail	0.270	
t Critical two-tail	2.306	

Table 4.2.8 t-test: paired two sample for means performance of CAR

Sources: SPSS

#### 4.3 Major finding

The major fining of this study are as follows.

- From the distractive statistics analysis mean performance of return on assets before the merger is 1.21 and after the merger is 1.57 which shows that mean performance of return on assets increase after merger. Which is also support by the hypothesis test, the t-stat is 3.030 and t Critical one-tail test is 1.860 and two-tail test is 2.306 are significant at 1% and 5% level of significance i.e. P(T<=t) one-tail test is 0.008 and (T<=t) two-tail test is 0.016 and correlation analysis show that there is positive correlation pre-merger and post-merger.
- 2. From the distractive statistics analysis mean performance of return on equity premerger is 30.44 and post-merger is 27.74, which shows that return on equity decrease after the merger, which is also support by the hypothesis test. The t-stat is 0.273 and t Critical one-tail test is 1.860 and two-tail test is 2.306 are insignificant at 1% and 5% level of significance i.e. P(T<=t) one-tail test is 0.432 and (T<=t) two-tail test is 0.863 and correlation analysis show that there is insignificant positive correlation pre-merger and post-merger return on equity.</p>
- 3. From the distractive statistics analysis mean performance of earning per share premerger is 23.74 and post-merger is 25.664, which shows that earning per share increase after the merger, which is also support by the hypothesis test. The t-stat is 0.551 and t Critical one-tail test is 1.860 and two-tail test is 2.306 are insignificant at 1% and 5% level of significance i.e. P(T<=t) one-tail test is 0.298 and (T<=t) two-tail test is 0.596 and correlation analysis show that there is insignificant positive correlation i.e. 0.252 pre-merger and post-merger earning per share.</p>
- 4. From the distractive statistics analysis mean performance of profit margin is 47.152 and post-merger is 51.292, which shows that profit margin increase after the merger, which is also support by the hypothesis test. The t-stat is 0.781 and t Critical one-tail test is 1.860 and two-tail test is 2.306 are insignificant at 1% and 5% level of significance i.e.  $P(T \le t)$  one-tail test is 0.229 and  $(T \le t)$  two-tail test is 0.457 and correlation analysis show that there is insignificant positive correlation i.e. 0.548 pre-merger and post-merger profit margin.

- 5. From the distractive statistics analysis mean performance of assets quality, premerger is 1.75 and post-merger is 1.539, which shows that assets quality decrease after the merger, which is also support by the hypothesis test. The t-stat is 0.815 and t Critical one-tail test is 1.86 and two-tail test is 2.306 are insignificant at 1% and 5% level of significance i.e.  $P(T \le t)$  one-tail test is 0.219 and ( $T \le t$ ) two-tail test is 0.438 and correlation analysis show that there is insignificant positive correlation i.e. 0.637 pre-merger and post-merger assets quality.
- 6. From the distractive statistics analysis mean performance of liquidity, pre-merger is 0.803 and post-merger is 0.863, which shows that liquidity increase after the merger, which is also support by the hypothesis test. The t-stat is 3.882 and t Critical one-tail test is 1.86 and two-tail test is 2.306 are significant at 1% and 5% level of significance i.e. P(T<=t) one-tail test is 0.002and (T<=t) two-tail test is 0.005 and correlation analysis show that there is significant positive correlation i.e. 0.637 premerger and post-merger liquidity.</p>
- 7. From the distractive statistics analysis mean performance of debt to equity ratio, pre-merger is 15.294 and post-merger is 12.797, which shows that liquidity decrease after the merger, which is also support by the hypothesis test. The t-stat is 0.988 and t Critical one-tail test is 1.86 and two-tail test is 2.306 are significant at 1% and 5% level of significance i.e. P(T<=t) one-tail test is 0.176 and (T<=t) two-tail test is 0.352 and correlation analysis show that there is insignificant negative correlation i.e. 0.44 pre-merger and post-merger debt to equity ratio.</p>
- 8. From the distractive statistics analysis mean performance of capital adequacy position, pre-merger is 14.274 and post-merger is 12.811, which shows that capital adequacy of banks decrease after the merger, which is also support by the hypothesis test. The t-stat is 1.186 and t Critical one-tail test is 1.86 and two-tail test is 2.306 are significant at 1% and 5% level of significance i.e.  $P(T \le t)$  one-tail test is .135 and ( $T \le t$ ) two-tail test is 0.270 and correlation analysis show that there is insignificant negative correlation i.e. -0.168 pre-merger and post-merger capital adequacy position.

# **CHAPTER IV**

# CONCLUSION

The chapter presents a summary of the results on the impact of mergers on the financial performance of commercial banks in Nepal. Based on the findings in chapter four, the study gives recommendations on what the banks' management can do to improve their financial performance of the banks following a merger or acquisition. The recommendations are presented also based on the objective of the study after which recommendations for further studies are drawn.

#### 5.1 Summary

Merger means combining of two or more than two companies to raise their capital to survive in the industry. Bank mergers is claimed to be the sources of efficiency gains from the realization of economies of scale and economies of scope. The central bank planned to improve the health of the financial sector by introducing the Merger by law 2011 AD grounded on the Company Act 2006 AD article 177, BAFIA 2006 AD article 68 and 69 that pressurize all the BFIs for immediate merger as a consolidation. A merger was not a choice of the Nepal Rastra bank but it was a compulsion strategy to increase the capital and strengthen their capacity to face the competitive market.

The study aimed at establishing whether merger lead to an improved performance of commercial banks in Nepal. The objective of the study was to determine the impact of mergers on the financial performance of commercial banks in Nepal. To fulfil this research objective researcher used distractive and analytical research design. Bank of Kathmandu Lumbini limited, NMB bank Limited, and Siddhartha bank limited are selected as ample for this study which are merged during 2015 AD. Data are collected from the financial statement obtained from the annual report of the respected banks three year before-merger and three year after-merger. To analysis the data both financial and statistical tools are used. Ratio analysis is used as financial tools and mean, standard deviation, correlation and t-Test: Paired Two Sample for Means is used as statistical tools for data analysis. From the distractive statistics analysis mean performance of return on assets before the merger is

1.21 and after the merger is 1.57 which shows that mean performance of return on assets increase after merger. Which is also support by the hypothesis test, the t-stat is 3.030 and t Critical one-tail test is 1.860 and two-tail test is 2.306 are significant at 1% and 5% level of significance i.e.  $P(T \le t)$  one-tail test is 0.008 and  $(T \le t)$  two-tail test is 0.016 and correlation analysis show that there is positive correlation pre-merger and post-merger.

From the distractive statistics analysis mean performance of return on equity pre-merger is 30.44 and post-merger is 27.74, which shows that return on equity decrease after the merger, which is also support by the hypothesis test. The t-stat is 0.273 and t Critical onetail test is 1.860 and two-tail test is 2.306 are insignificant at 1% and 5% level of significance i.e.  $P(T \le t)$  one-tail test is 0.432 and (T <= t) two-tail test is 0.863 and correlation analysis show that there is insignificant positive correlation pre-merger and post-merger return on equity. Similarly from the distractive statistics analysis mean performance of earning per share pre-merger is 23.74 and post-merger is 25.664, which shows that earning per share increase after the merger, which is also support by the hypothesis test. The t-stat is 0.551 and t Critical one-tail test is 1.860 and two-tail test is 2.306 are insignificant at 1% and 5% level of significance i.e.  $P(T \le t)$  one-tail test is 0.298 and (T<=t) two-tail test is 0.596 and correlation analysis show that there is insignificant positive correlation i.e. 0.252 pre-merger and post-merger earning per share. Likewise form the distractive statistics analysis mean performance of earning profit margin is 47.152 and post-merger is 51.292, which shows that profit margin increase after the merger, which is also support by the hypothesis test. The t-stat is 0.781 and t Critical one-tail test is 1.860 and two-tail test is 2.306 are insignificant at 1% and 5% level of significance i.e.  $P(T \le t)$ one-tail test is 0.229 and (T<=t) two-tail test is 0.457 and correlation analysis show that there is insignificant positive correlation i.e. 0.548 pre-merger and post-merger profit margin. Similarly from the distractive statistics analysis mean performance of assets quality, pre-merger is 1.75 and post-merger is 1.539, which shows that assets quality decrease after the merger, which is also support by the hypothesis test. The t-stat is 0.815 and t Critical one-tail test is 1.86 and two-tail test is 2.306 are insignificant at 1% and 5% level of significance i.e. P(T<=t) one-tail test is 0.219 and (T<=t) two-tail test is 0.438 and correlation analysis show that there is insignificant positive correlation i.e. 0.637 premerger and post-merger assets quality. Similarly from the distractive statistics analysis

mean performance of liquidity, pre-merger is 0.803 and post-merger is 0.863, which shows that liquidity increase after the merger, which is also support by the hypothesis test. The tstat is 3.882 and t Critical one-tail test is 1.86 and two-tail test is 2.306 are significant at 1% and 5% level of significance i.e.  $P(T \le t)$  one-tail test is 0.002and (T <= t) two-tail test is 0.005 and correlation analysis show that there is significant positive correlation i.e. 0.637 pre-merger and post-merger liquidity. Similarly from the distractive statistics analysis mean performance of debt to equity ratio, pre-merger is 15.294 and post-merger is 12.797, which shows that liquidity decrease after the merger, which is also support by the hypothesis test. The t-stat is 0.988 and t Critical one-tail test is 1.86 and two-tail test is 2.306 are significant at 1% and 5% level of significance i.e. P(T<=t) one-tail test is 0.176 and (T<=t) two-tail test is 0.352 and correlation analysis show that there is insignificant negative correlation i.e. 0.44 pre-merger and post-merger debt to equity ratio. Similarly from the distractive statistics analysis mean performance of capital adequacy position, premerger is 14.274 and post-merger is 12.811, which shows that capital adequacy of banks decrease after the merger, which is also support by the hypothesis test. The t-stat is 1.186 and t Critical one-tail test is 1.86 and two-tail test is 2.306 are significant at 1% and 5% level of significance i.e. P(T<=t) one-tail test is .135 and (T<=t) two-tail test is 0.270 and correlation analysis show that there is insignificant negative correlation i.e. -0.168 premerger and post-merger capital adequacy position.

#### 5.2 Conclusion

The purpose of this research is to study the merger and its impact on the performance of commercial bank when Nepal Rastra Bank introduced a forceful merger bylaws policy in the year of 2011. From the financial statistics discussed in chapter four above, the study concluded that Returns on Assets, earning per share, profit margin, liquidity increased significantly after the merger of the banks. However return on equity, assets quality, debt to total equity and Capital adequacy positon are decreased after the merger. The assets quality ratios, which is measured by the total non-performing assets to total loan and advance is decreased after the merger, which show that the performing assets of merged banks. The merged banks able to maintain non-performing assets ratios as refers by Nepal Rastra bank. Similarly the sampled merged bank able to meet the capital adequacy position.

#### **5.3 Implication and recommendation**

The purpose of the study is to measure the impact mergers on the financial performance of banks. It is important for firms that have weak profitability, liquidity and capital structure to consider mergers and acquisitions so as to improve their profitability, liquidity and capital adequacy since it plays a significant role in improving the financial performance of a bank. Based on the finding of the study recommendation of the study are as follow.

- The profitability of the banks was found to improve after mergers. Banks need to be encouraged if by doing so their profitability improve. Improvement in profitability is likely to have a positive effect on the financial performance of the firm.
- The solvency of a firm was found to improve after mergers and acquisitions. Firms need to be encouraged if by doing so their solvency improve. Improvement in liquidity is likely to have a positive effect on the financial performance of the firm.
- Capital adequacy have significant impact on profitability of commercial bank in Nepal advised to bank management to give due attention capital adequacy to improve profitability.
- 4. Through mergers and acquisitions, the commercial banks be able to extend their market share and revenue base hence increase their profitability. In addition, mergers and acquisition leads to a higher capital adequacy position which improves the financial soundness of commercial banks.
- 5. The current study fully employed secondary data obtained from financial reports of banks or through Nepal Rastra Bank can have potential bias. Thus, future research is recommended to substantiate and/or triangulate secondary data by primary data.
- 6. There are various challenges facing the formation of mergers and acquisition. A research should be carried out to figure out these challenges and the reasons why many firms are hesitant to embrace M&A s despite the many advantages that come with it.

#### REFERENCES

- Adegbaju, A. A. & Olokoyo, F. O. (2008). Recapitalization and bank's performance: A Case study of Nigerian banks. *African Economic and Business Review*.
- Adhikari, D. R. (2014). *Strategic Management* (Third ed.). Kathmandu: Buddha Academic Publishers and Distributors Pvt. Ltd.
- Adhikari, S. (2014). Merger and acquisition as an indispensable tool for strengthening
  Nepalese banking and financial institutions (unpublished thesis) Lapland
  University of Applied Sciences.
- Alam, N., & Lee Ng, S. (2014). Banking mergers–an application of matching strategy. *Review of Accounting and Finance*.
- Altunbas, Y., & Marques, D. (2008). Merger and acquisition and bank performance in Europe-The role of strategic similarities. *Journal of Economics and Business*.
- Awan, P. D., & Mahmood, U. B. (2015). Impact of Mergers and Acquisitions on the Performance of Commercial Banks in Pakistan . *Journal of Poverty, Investment* and Development.
- Bakari, A. S. (2011). The trend and growth implications of bank recapitalization in Nigeria. African Journal of Business Management.
- Berger, A. N. & Humphrey, D. (1992). Mega mergers in banking and the use of cost Efficiency as an antirust defense. *Antirust bull*.
- Chalise, M., & Bhandari, D. R. (2018). *Strategic Management*. Kathmandu: Asmita Pubilication.
- Chesang, C.J., (2002) "Merger Restructuring and Financial Performance of Commercial Banks in Kenya" Unpublished Dissertation, School of Business, University of Nairobi.
- Chellasamy, P., & Ponsabariraj, N. (2014). Performance Evaluation Of Mergers And Acquisitions of Scheduled Commercial Banks In India. Vidyaniketan Journal of Management and Research.
- Dhakal, H. (2015). Impact and challenges of merger and acquisition in Nepalese banking And financial institutions. Thesis.
- Gathuku, G. M., & Njeru, D. A. (2015). Effect of Mergers on Financial Performance of Commercial Banks in Kenya . *International Journal of Science and Research*

- Ghosh, S., & Dutta, S. (2015). Mergers and Acquisitions in Indian Banking Sector: Pre-Post Analysis of Performance Parameters. *International Organization of Scientific Research in Journal of Business and Management*.
- Gupta, K. (2015). Mergers and acquisitions in the Indian banking sector: A study of selected banks. *International Journal of Advanced Research in Management and Social Sciences*.
- Joash, G., & Njangiru, M. (2015). The effect of merger and acquisition on financial Performance of banks (A survey of commercial banks in Kenya). Internaional Journal of Innovative Research and Development.
- Joshua O. (2011). Comparative analysis of the impact of mergers and acquisitions on financial efficiency of banks in Nigeria. *Journal of Accounting and Taxation*.
- Kemal, M. U. (2011). Post-merger profitability: A case of Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS). International Journal of Business and Social Science.

Kishore (2009), Financial Management, Taxmann's, Edition 7, pp 1068.

- Kivindu, G. (2013) Effect of Mergers and Acquisitions on Profitability of Commercial Banks in Kenya. *An MBA project submitted to Kenyatta University*.
- Kumar S. and Bansal K. (2008), "The Impact of Mergers and Acquisitions on Corporate Performance in India", *Management Decision*.
- Maditinos, D. Theriou, N. and Demetriades, E. (2009) The Effect of Mergers and Acquisitions on the Performance of Companies. The Greek Case of Ioniki-Laiki Bank and Pisteos Bank. *Journal of European Research Studies*.
- Mantravadi, P., & Reddy, A. V. (2008). Type of merger and impact on operating Performance: The Indian experience. *Economic and Political Weekly*.
- Marembo, J. (2012). The Impact of Mergers and Acquisitions on the Financial Performance of Financial Institutions in Kenya. An MBA project submitted to the University of Nairobi.
- Murthy, G. K. (2007). Some Cases of Bank Mergers in India: A Study. In Bose, J. (Ed.), Bank Mergers: The Indian Scenario. *Hyderabad: The ICFAI University Press*
- Mehandiratta, S. (2017). Impact of Mergers and Acquisition on The Financial Performance of Indian Commercial Banks. *Thesis*.
- Misigah, G. (2013) Effects of mergers and acquisition on growth: a study of Commercial

Banks in Kenya. An MBA project submitted to Kenyatta University.

- Modebe, N., Isibor, A., & Okoye, L. U. (2016). Effect Of Mergers And Acquisitions On Banking Sector Performance In Nigeria. Social Development Ng-Journal Of Social Development.
- Muia F, (2010). Determinants of growth of firms through mergers and acquisitions in Kenya: a study of firms listed at the Nairobi Stock Exchange. An unpublished MBA Project Report, Department of Economics and Business Studies, Maseno University.
- Mungai, J. N. (2015). The Effect of Mergers and Acquisitions on Financial Performance of Banks (A Survey of Commercial Banks in Kenya). National Journal of Innovative Research and development.
- Ndora N (2010). The effects of mergers and acquisitions on the financial performance of Insurance companies in Kenya. *Unpublished MBA project University of Nairobi*
- Okpanachi, J. (2011). Comparative analysis of the impact of mergers and acquisitions on Financial efficiency of banks in Nigeria. *Journal of Accounting and Taxation*.
- Patel, R. (2017). Pre & Post-Merger Financial Performance: An Indian. *Perspective*, *Journal* of Central Banking Theory and Practice.
- Shah, A. K., & Dwa, S. (2017). A Study on Merger and Operating Performance of Commercial Banks of Nepal. *Journal of Social and Business Research*.
- Shah, B. A., & Khan, N. (2017). Impacts of Mergers and Acquisitions on Acquirer Banks' Performance. Australasian Accountancy, business and Finance Journal.
- Shrestha, M., Thapa, R. K., & Phuyal, R. K. (2017). A Comparative Study of Merger effect on Financial Performance of Banking and Financial Instuation in Nepal. *Journal of Business and Social Sciences Research*.
- Singh, G., & Gupta, S. (2015). An impact of mergers and acquisitions on productivity and Profitability of consolidation banking sector in India. *Abhinav International Monthly Refereed Journal of Research in Management & Technology.*
- Sudarsanam, S., (2003), Creating Value from Mergers and Acquisitions *The Challenges, Prentice Hall, Essex.*

- Tamragndi & Deverajappa (2016). Impact of mergers on Indian Banking Sector: A comparative study of Public and Private Sector merged Banks. Acme Intellects International Journal of Research in Management, Social Sciences & Technology,
- Trautwein, F (1990), Merger Motives and Managerial Prescriptions, *Strategic Management Journal.*
- Viverita M. (2008), "The Effect of Mergers on Bank Performance: Evidence From Bank Consolidation Policy in Indonesia", International Review of Business Research Papers.
- Wanguru A, (2011) the effects of mergers and acquisition on the profitability of
  - Commercial banks in Kenya, Unpublished MBA project University of Nairobi.
- http://www.bossnepal.com/bank-kathmandu-limited
- http://www.nmbbanknepal.com/about-us/introduction
- https://www.siddharthabank.com/about-us/introduction
- https://www.nrb.org.np/ofg/monetary\_policy/Monetary\_Policy\_(in\_English)--2019-
- 20\_(Full\_Text)-new.pdf

# Appendix 1 Bank wise variables

1 Bank of Kathmandu

Variables	Before Merger			After Merger		
	3	2	1	1	2	3
ROA	0.65	0.74	0.84	1.57	1.45	1.45
ROE	0	13.23	16.44	22.18	23.74	18.74
EPS	13.25	15.78	14.86	20.69	19.46	20.69
PM	37.85	15.36	25.3	33.22	40.4	33.75
AQ	1.06	3.47	1.51	1.29	3.04	1.29
L	0.84	0.85	0.85	0.86	0.84	0.88
CAR	11.57	13	13.01	13.41	14.88	13.41
debt to equity		18.48	9.97	15.76	13.3	11.13

Sourses: Annula reoprt of Bank of Kathmandu Limited.

# 2 NMB Bank

Variables	Before Merger			After Merger		
	3	2	1	1	2	3
ROA	1.43	1.36	1.21	1.49	1.69	1.65
ROE	27.27	26.75	28.7	31.95	30.11	31.82
EPS	18.02	20.5	25.05	27.79	26.88	28.67
PM	58.85	60.23	59.77	68.09	66.82	191.05
AQ	1.8	0.55	0.42	1.81	1.68	0.88
L	0.74	0.76	0.74	0.82	0.84	0.89
CAR	11.74	10.75	11.13	10.98	13.61	15.75
debt to equity	11.25	11.41	13.92	12.27	10.01	9.93

Sourses: Annula reoprt of NMB Bank

Siddhartha bank limited

Variables	Before Merger			А	fter Merger	
	3	2	1	1	2	3
ROA	1.43	1.74	1.51	1.69	1.54	1.59
ROE	41.72	54.19	50.78	44.85	32.37	13.9
EPS	29.8	38.63	37.77	41.53	18.82	26.45
PM	47.07	59.72	60.22	70.93	66.28	40.9
AQ	2.39	2.75	1.8	1.47	1.3	1.09
L	0.83	0.79	0.83	0.87		0.9
CAR	11.8	13.39	11.1	11.25	12.74	12.12
debt to equity	17.09	18.25	19.26	15.25	10.55	11.69

Sources: Annual Report of Siddhartha Bank Limited.

Paired two sample t-test for means performance ROA.

	Pre-merger	Post-merger
Mean	1.212	1.569
Variance	0.145	0.009
Observations	9.000	9.000
Pearson Correlation	0.408	
t Stat	3.030	
P(T<=t) one-tail	0.008	
t Critical one-tail	1.860	
P(T<=t) two-tail	0.016	
t Critical two-tail	2.306	

Sourses: SPSS

Paired two sample t-Test for means performance ROE

	Pre-merger	Post-merger
Mean	28.787	27.740
Variance	315.736	84.204
Observations	9.000	9.000
Pearson Correlation	0.273	
df	8.000	
t Stat	0.178	
P(T<=t) one-tail	0.432	
t Critical one-tail	1.860	
P(T<=t) two-tail	0.863	
t Critical two-tail	2.306	

Sourses: SPSS

Paired two sample t-test for means performance EPS

	Pre-merger	Post-merger
Mean	23.740	25.664
Variance	94.058	50.274
Observations	9.000	9.000
Pearson Correlation	0.252	
Df.	8.00	
t Stat	-0.551	
P(T<=t) one-tail	0.298	
t Critical one-tail	1.860	
P(T<=t) two-tail	0.596	
t Critical two-tail	2.306	

Sourses: SPSS

Paired two sample t-test for means performance PM

	Pre-merger	Post-merger
Mean	47.152	51.292
Variance	296.324	261.947
Observations	9.000	9.000
Pearson Correlation	0.548	
Df.	8.000	
t Stat	-0.781	
P(T<=t) one-tail	0.229	
t Critical one-tail	1.860	
P(T<=t) two-tail	0.457	
t Critical two-tail	2.306	

Sourses: SPSS

Paired two sample t-Test for means performance PM

	Pre-merger	Post-merger
Mean	0.803	0.863
Variance	0.002	0.001
Observations	9.000	9.000
Pearson Correlation	0.280	
Df	8.000	
t Stat	-3.882	
P(T<=t) one-tail	0.002	
t Critical one-tail	1.860	
P(T<=t) two-tail	0.005	
t Critical two-tail	2.306	

Sourses: SPSS

Paired two sample t-test for means performance AQ

	Pre-merger	Post-merger
Mean	1.750	1.539
Variance	1.014	0.396
Observations	9.000	9.000
Pearson Correlation	0.637	
Df.	8.000	
t Stat	0.815	
P(T<=t) one-tail	0.219	
t Critical one-tail	1.860	
P(T<=t) two-tail	0.438	
t Critical two-tail	2.306	
P(T<=t) two-tail t Critical two-tail	0.438 2.306	

Sourses: SPSS

Paired two sample t-test for means performance liquidity

	Pre-merger	Post-merger
Mean	0.803	0.863
Variance	0.002	0.001
Observations	9.000	9.000
Pearson Correlation	0.280	
df	8.000	
t Stat	-3.882	
P(T<=t) one-tail	0.002	
t Critical one-tail	1.860	
P(T<=t) two-tail	0.005	
t Critical two-tail	2.306	

Sourses: SPSS

Paired two sample t-test for means performance debt equity ratio.

	Pre-merger	Post-merger
Mean	15.294	12.797
Variance	40.973	4.549
Observations	9.000	9.000
Pearson Correlation	-0.440	
df	8.000	
t Stat	0.988	
P(T<=t) one-tail	0.176	
t Critical one-tail	1.860	
P(T<=t) two-tail	0.352	
t Critical two-tail	2.306	

Sourses: SPSS

Paired two sample t-test for means performance capital adequacy position

	Pre-merger	Post-merger
Mean	14.274	12.811
Variance	9.513	2.529
Observations	9.000	9.000
Pearson Correlation	-0.168	
df	8.000	
t Stat	1.186	
P(T<=t) one-tail	0.135	
t Critical one-tail	1.860	
P(T<=t) two-tail	0.270	
t Critical two-tail	2.306	

Sourses: SPSS

List of commercial banks merged up to 2019/20 AD

S.	Name of merged BFIs	Banks name after the merger
N.		
1	Rastriya Banijya Bank Limited and	Rastriya Banijya Bank Limited
	NIDC Development Bank Limited	
2	Janata Bank Nepal Limited and	Janata Bank Nepal Limited
	Triveni Bikash Bank Limited	
3	Grand Bank Nepal Limited and	Brabhu Bank Limited
	Prabhu Bank Limited	
4	Bank of Kathmandu Limited and	Bank of Kathmandu Limited
	Lumbini Bank Limited	
5	NCC Bank Ltd., Infrastructure	Nepal Credit and Commerce Bank
	Development Ltd., Apex	Limited
	Development Bank Ltd, Supreme	
	Development Bank Limited and	
	International Development Bank	
	Limited	
6	Laxmi Bank Ltd. and Hisef Finance	Laxmi Bank Limited
	Ltd.	
7	Nepal Bangaladesh Ltd and Nepal	Nepal Bangaladesh Limited
	Bangaladesh Finance Ltd.	
8	NMB Bank Ltd, Pathibhara Bikash	NMB Bank Limited
	Bank Ltd, Clen Energy Development	
	Ltd and Prudential Finance Co. Ltd.	
9	Global IME Bank Ltd, Social	Global IME Bank Limited
	Development Limited and Gulmi	
	Bikash Bank Ltd.	
10	Machhapurchhare Bank Ltd and	Machhapurchhare Bank Limited
	Standard Fiance Ltd	
11	Mega Bank Nepal Ltd and	Mega Bank Nepal Limited
	Paschimanchal Development Ltd.	
12	Siddhartha Bank Limited and	Siddhartha bank Limited
	Business Universal development bank	
	Ltd.	

Sources: https://www.sharesansar.com/merger-acquisition



# बैंक अफ काठमाण्डू लिमिटेड

एकीकृत वित्तीय अवस्थाको विवरण (वासलात)

२०७५ आषाढ मसान्तको

रकम रु. मा

			समूह		बैंक		
विवरण	नोट	आषाढ मसान्त	आषाढ मसान्त	৭ श्रावण	आषाढ मसान्त	आषाढ मसान्त	৭ श्रावण
		২০৬২	२०७४ (पुनर्लिखित)	२०७३ (पुनर्लिखित)	২০৬২	२०७४ (पुनर्लिखित)	२०७३ (पुनर्लिखित)
सम्पत्ति							
नगद तथा नगद समान	૪.૧	३,४४३,१४७,८३१	ર,૬૦૫,૨૦૫,૧૫૬	३,४३०,६६४,६४४	३,४२२,८३९,९७७	२,९०४,२०४,१४६	३,४३०,६६४,६४४
नेपाल राष्ट्र बैंकमा रहेको मौज्दात तथा लिनु पर्ने	૪.૨	४,२६४,४७४,३३९	६,६११,६०४,२९८	६,४०७,८३४,४७४	४,२६४,४७४,३३९	६,६११,६०४,२९८	६,५०७,८३५,४७४
बैङ्क तथा वित्तीय संस्थामा रहेको मौज्दात	४.३	१,८४६,७३०,२८३	२,०१२,३४८,६२४	१,४३८,१०३,४४२	१,८४६,७३०,२८३	२,०१२,३४८,६२४	१,४३८,१०३,४४२
डेरिभेटिभ वित्तीय उपकरण	8.8	-	-	-	-	-	-
अन्य व्यापारिक सम्पत्तिहरु	૪.૪	३४,०८८,००८	-	-	२४,२६०,०००	-	-
बैङ्क तथा वित्तीय संस्थालाई दिएको कर्जा तथा सापटी	૪.૬	१,८३१,८३१,४७१	૧,૪૬૪,૪૪૨,૪૬૬	९४७,०९८,००९	१,८३१,८३१,४७१	१,४५४,४४२,४६९	९४७,०९८,००९
ग्राहकलाई दिएको कर्जा तथा सापटी	૪.૭	६४,७८९,०८२,४३४	४९,४४८,७७४,४०९	<u>५७,६३६,</u> १२८,७९३	६५,७८९,०८२,४३४	४९,४४८,७७४,४०९	५७,६३६,१२८,७९३
धितोपत्रमा (Securities) लगानी	४.८	११,५७६,९०३,६४९	११,०≂६,७४१,४४९	९,२८२,३०९,४१४	११,५२१,९०३,६४९	११,०८६,७४१,४४९	९,२८२,३०९,४१४
यस वर्षको आयकर सम्पत्ति	8.9	११६,६११,२३४	-	४९,००४,४९३	११४,०४४,७९०	-	४९,००४,४९३
सहायक कम्पनीमा लगानी	8.90	-	-	-	980,000,000	-	-
सम्बद्ध कम्पनीमा लगानी	૪.૧૧	-	-	-	-	-	-
सम्पत्तिमा लगानी (Investment Property)	४.१२	२४,६५८,४२५	२४,६५८,४२५	२४,६५८,४२५	२४,६५८,४२५	२४,६५८,४२५	२४,६५८,४२५
सम्पत्ति तथा उपकरण	४.१३	९४३,६२६,३४४	९३२,३९१,६९९	९५०,२१६,३००	९३४,२४३,०००	९३२,३९१,६९९	९५०,२१६,३००
ख्याती र अमुर्त सम्पत्ति	૪.૧૪	२३,००४,०३८	१३,६५४,८८४	१८,३६३,८०७	२०,४९६,४८९	१३,६५४,८८४	१८,३६३,८०७
स्थगन कर सम्पत्ति	૪.૧૪	-	-	-	-	-	-
अन्य सम्पत्ति	૪.૧૬	૨૭૦,३૧३,७७२	२४७,९४८,४७६	२६३,५४१,०६२	२७०,२३९,२३८	२४७,९४८,४७६	२६३,५४१,०६२
कुल सम्पत्ति		९१,१६४,४७१,८२९	<b>೯</b> ४,೯ <b>೪</b> ,७೯९,९९९	<b>न०,</b> ४४७,९२४,१न४	९१,२०६, <b>द१४,१</b> द७	<b>८१,९९९,७८९,५९९</b>	<b>८०,</b> ४४७,९२४,१८४
दायित्व							
बैङ्क तथा वित्तीय संस्थालाई तिर्न बाँकी	૪.૧૭	-	-	२,२००,२५८,०९७	-	-	२,२००,२४८,०९७
नेपाल राष्ट्र बैंकलाई तिर्न बाँकी	४.१८	१८,४९६,६२६	४,०००,०००	४७,०००,०००	१८,४९६,६२६	४,०००,०००	४७,०००,०००
डेरिभेटिभ वित्तीय उपकरण	૪.૧૬	-	-	-	-	-	-
ग्राहक निक्षेप	४.२०	७६,७७७,૧४४,७२४	७२,९२२,२८४,७६९	६८,०६६,०६६,४४६	७६,९ঀ३,७४३,९०४	७२,९२२,२८४,७६९	६८,०६६,०६६,४४६
सापटी	૪.૨૧	-	-	-	-	-	-
यस वर्षको आयकर दायित्व	૪.૬	-	१०,९५४,२४७	-	-	१०,९५४,२४७	-
व्यवस्था	૪.૨૨	१७,४४३,८४७	૧૪,૬૬૦,૭૧૨	૧૬,૧⊏૭,૬૬પ્ર	१७,४४३,≂४७	૧૬,૬૬૦,૭૧૨	૧૬,૧૬૭,૬૬૫
स्थगन कर दायित्व	૪.૧૪	१७२,३५४,०८९	३१८,२८६,९४२	२३३,३१४,४२३	१७२,६६६,४७४	३१८,२८६,९४२	ર३३,३१४,४२३
अन्य दायित्व	૪.૨३	४९२,४४४,७७७	४८६,३०१,२४१	<b>५०७,४</b> १९,४ <b>⊏</b> ९	<u> </u>	४८६,३०१,२४१	५०७,४१९,४८९
जारी गरिएको ऋणपत्र	૪.૨૪	-	-	-	-	-	-
सूरक्षण नराखिएको सहायक आवद्यिक दायित्व	૪.૨૪	૧,૦૪૧,૨૧૫,૭૧૨	૧,૦૪૧,૦૬૬,७૧૨	૧,૦૪૦,૨૧૭,૭૧૨	૧,૦૪૧,૨૧૫,૭૧૨	૧,૦૪૧,૦૬૬,७૧૨	૧,૦૪૦,૨૧૭,૭૧૨
कुल दायित्व		७८,६१९,३२१,७८४	७४,८९८,६१६,६४३	७२,११३,४६४,३७२	७८,७३४,४७२,३४०	७४,८९८,६१६,६४३	७२,११३,४६४,३७२
इक्विटी							
शेयर पूंजी	४.२६	७,०७२,८९४,९०८	४,६२९,४७६,०००	४,४७६,८९१,०००	७,०७२,८९४,९०८	४,६२९,४७६,०००	४,४७६,८९१,०००
शेयर प्रिमियम		९२९,९२६,०६७	-	-	९२९,९२६,०६७	-	-
सञ्चित मुनाफा		≂६१,४७१,३४२	९६०,१७४,१०४	१,१११,४०२,११४	८४८,२३४,७९६	९६०,१७४,१०४	१,१११,४०२,११४
जगेडा कोषहरु	૪.૨૭	३,६१०,१८४,०७६	३,३६९,४२३,२४२	२,७५६,१६६,६९९	ર,૬૧૦,૧⊏૪,૦७૬	३,३६९,४२३,२४२	२,७५६,१६६,६९९
शेयर धनीहरुलाई वांडफांड योग्य कुल इक्विटी		૧૨,૪७૪,૪૭૬,૪૦३	९,९४९,१७३,३४६	<i>८,४४४,४</i> ५९,८१३	૧૨,૪७૧,૨૪૧,૬૪७	९,९५९,१७३,३४६	८,४४४,४४९,८१
गैर नियन्त्रित स्वार्थ		૭૦,૪૭૧,૬૪૧	-	-	-	-	-
कुल इक्विटी		9२,४४४,१४०,०४४	૬,૬૪૬,૧७३,३४६	<b>८,४४४,४</b> ५९,८१३	૧૨,૪७૧,૨૪૧,૬૪७	९,९४९,૧७३,३४६	८,४४४,४४९,८१
कुल दायित्व र इक्विटी		९१,१६४,४७१,⊏२९	<b>८४,८</b> ४७,७८९,९९९	<b>८०,</b> ४४७,९२४,१ <b>८</b> ४	९१,२०६,८१४,१८७	<i>६४,६४७,७</i> ६९,९९९	<b>८०,</b> ४४७,९२४,१८४
सम्भावित दायित्व तथा प्रतिवद्धता	४.२८	२२,०९३,७६१,८९०	२२,७४७,४३६,४२८	२२,६६३,४६६,४२३	२२,०९३,७६१,८९०	२२,७४७,४३६,४२८	२२,६६३,४६६,४२३
प्रति शेयर खुद सम्पत्ति		୧୦୦. ୧୦	૧७૬.૬૧	१८४.४०	१७६.३२	१७६.९१	१८४.४०

द..... सि.ए.चन्द्र राज शर्मा प्रमुख वित्त अधिकृत

द..... राधेश पन्त संचालक

द..... प्रा.डा.हेम राज सुवेदी संचालक द...... शोभन देव पन्त प्रमुख कार्यकारी अधिकृत

द..... जितेन्द्र धिताल संचालक

द..... गोविन्द प्रसाद शर्मा संचालक द..... प्रकाश श्रेष्ठ अध्यक्ष

द..... मदल लाल जोशी संचालक

द..... दिव्य निधि विष्ट संचालक आजको मितिमा संलग्न प्रतिवेदन अनुसार

द..... सि.ए. एस आर पाण्डे बरिष्ठ साभेदार एस आर पाण्डे एण्ड कम्पनी चार्टर्ड एकाउन्टेण्ट्स

मितिः २७ मंसिर २०७५ स्थानः काठमाडौं ।

# बैंक अफ काठमाण्डू लिमिटेड

एकीकृत नाफा नोक्सान विवरण

साउन १,	२०७४	देखि	३२	आषाढ	2092	सम्म
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •			· ·	-	•	

		समू	ह	बैंक	बैंक		
विवरण	नोट	यस वर्ष रू.	गत वर्ष रू. (पुनर्लिखित)	यस वर्ष रू.	गत वर्ष रू. (पुनर्लिखित)		
व्याज आम्दानी	૪.૨૬	<i>८,३६९,६२२,</i> ४९६	६,१६४,६४६,४२३	<i>८,३</i> ६४,६२४,७१२	६,१६४,६४६,४२३		
व्याज खर्च	४.३०	४,२९८,६४२,६४०	३,४४०,९०२,८७८	४,३०६,४९८,९९४	३,४४०,९०२,८७८		
खुद ब्याज आम्दानी		३,०७०,९७९,९४६	<i>ર,</i> ૬૧૪,૭ <u>૫</u> ३,૬૪૫	३,०४९,१२४,७१८	<i>૨,૬</i> ૧૪,૭ <u>૫</u> ३,૬૪૫		
शुल्क तथा कमिशन आम्दानी	૪.३૧	४४२,७४२,९००	४८६,८७२,४७२	<b>४३९,९४४,</b> ६६३	४८६,८७२,४७२		
शुल्क तथा कमिशन खर्च	४.३२	५०,४११,४८८	૪૬,૧૪૭,૧९३	४०,३१६,३१ <b>८</b>	४६,१४७,१९३		
खुद शुल्क र कमिशन आम्दानी		४९२,३३१,३१२	४४०,७१४,२७९	४८९,६३८,३४४	૪૪૦,૭૧૪,૨૭૬		
खुद ब्याज, शुल्क र कमिशन आम्दानी		३,४६३,३११,२६८	३,०४४,४६८,९२४	३,४४८,७६४,०६३	३,०५५,४६८,९२४		
खुद व्यापारिक आम्दानी	४.३३	२२४,८३९,४८२	२१७,९६४,२७८	૨૨૪,૭૧૦,૬૭૪	२१७,९६४,२७८		
अन्य संचालन आम्दानी	૪.३૪	१४०,६४४,८४९	३४,२०१,३९७	१४०,६४४,४४३	३४,२०१,३९७		
जम्मा संचालन आम्दानी		३,९२८,८०६,६९९	३,३०७,६३४,४९९	३,९१४,१३०,४८०	३,३०७,६३४,४९९		
कर्जा जोखिम ब्यबस्था/फिर्ता अन्य नोक्सानी	૪.૨૪	४६४,९४०,७२१	(८,८६०,४२७)	૪૬૪,९૪૦,७२૧	(८,८६०,४२७)		
खुद संचालन आम्दानी		३,४६२,८६४,९७८	<b>ર,</b> ર૧૬,૪ <b>૬</b> ૪,૧૨૬	३,४४९,१८९,८४९	३,३१६,४९५,१२६		
संचालन खर्च							
कर्मचारी खर्च	૪.३६	१,०३३,३४७,८८८	९५३,७१०,६०१	ঀ, <b>०</b> ३०,३०४,७७४	૬૪ૂર,૭૧૦,૬૦૧		
अन्य संचालन खर्च	૪.३७	४४४,९०१,१४९	४४०,७९२,४०४	४४२,०९९,४३१	४४०,७९२,४०४		
ह्रासकट्टी र परिषोधन	४.३८	१०४,२२८,९८०	१०४,⊏०३,२२०	१०२,९००,४७१	१०४,८०३,२२०		
संचालन मुनाफा		१,८७९,३८७,९४१	१,८०७,१८८,८०१	१,८७३,८८४,१८३	१,८०७,१८८,८०१		
गैर संचालन आम्दानी	૪.३९	१९,५३४,८००	१२६,३३४,४७३	१९,४३४,८००	१२६,३३४,४७३		
गैर संचालन खर्च	४.४०	१९१,६००	२६२,०३७	१९१,६००	२६२,०३७		
आयकर अघिको मुनाफा		१,८९८,७३१,१४१	१,९३३,२६१,२३७	१,८९३,२२८,३८३	१,९३३,२६१,२३७		
आयकर खर्च	૪.૪૧						
चालू कर		४६७,३४६,⊂२१	४८८,३४४,०१७	४६६,१३७,६४०	४८८,३४४,०१७		
स्थगन कर		४,१८१,८४९	८,६६२,८ <b>८४</b>	४,९०३,०८६	<b>८</b> ,६६२,८८४		
यस अवधिको मुनाफा		१,३२६,१९२,४८१	૧,३३६,२४४,३३४	१,३२१,१८७,६४७	૧,३३६,२४४,३३४		
नाफा वांडफांड							
बैंक शेयर धनी		१,३२४,४२४,२०३	૧,३३६,२४४,३३४	१,३२१,१८७,६४७	૧,३३६,२४४,३३४		
गैर नियन्त्रित स्वार्थ		१,६६८,२७८	-	-	-		
यस अवधिको मुनाफा		१,३२६,१९२,४८१	૧,३३६,२४४,३३४	१,३२१,१८७,६४७	૧,३३६,२४४,३३४		
प्रति शेयर आम्दानी							
आधारभूत प्रति शेयर आम्दानी		१९.४३	२०.६९	१९.४६	२०.६९		
डाइलूटेड प्रति शेयर आम्दानी		१९.४३	२०.६९	१९.४६	२०.६९		

द..... सि.ए.चन्द्र राज शर्मा प्रमुख वित्त अधिकृत

द..... राधेश पन्त संचालक

द..... प्रा.डा.हेम राज सुवेदी संचालक द..... शोभन देव पन्त प्रमुख कार्यकारी अधिकृत

द..... जितेन्द्र धिताल संचालक

द..... गोविन्द प्रसाद शर्मा संचालक द..... प्रकाश श्रेष्ठ अध्यक्ष

द..... मदल लाल जोशी संचालक

द..... दिव्य निधि विष्ट संचालक आजको मितिमा संलग्न प्रतिवेदन अनुसार

द..... सि.ए. एस आर पाण्डे बरिष्ठ साभोदार एस आर पाण्डे एण्ड कम्पनी चार्टर्ड एकाउन्टेण्ट्स

मितिः २७ मंसिर २०७५ स्थानः काठमाडौं ।

चौबीसौं वार्षिक प्रतिवेदन २०७४ / ७५


## **बैंक अफ काठमाण्डू लिमिटेड** एकीकृत अन्य विस्तृत आम्दानीको विवरण

साउन १, २०७४ देखि ३२ आषाढ २०७४ सम्म

चित्र राग		सम्	्ह	वै	क
विवरण	नाट	यस वर्ष रू.	गत वर्ष रू.	यस वर्ष रू.	गत वर्ष रू.
यस वर्षको नाफा		१,३२६,१९२,४८१	१,३३६,२४४,३३४	१,३२१,१८७,६४७	१,३३६,२४४,३३४
फेयर भेल्यु जगेडा कोष (इक्विटी उपकरणका लगानी)					
फेयर भेल्युमा मूल्यांकनमा परिवर्तन		(४९८,००८,०७६)	३१८,४०१,९३९	(४९८,००८,०७६)	३१८,४०१,९३९
नाफा/नोक्सान हिसाबमा सारिएको		-	-	-	-
पुनःमूल्यांकन भएका नाफा∕नोक्सान		-	-	-	-
नगद प्रवाह हेजिङ्गबाट					
नगद प्रवाहको हेजिङ्गबाट गरिएको नाफा/नोक्सान		-	-	-	-
नाफा/नोक्सान हिसाबमा सारिएको		-	-	-	-
परिभाषित लाभ योजनाबाट विमाङ्किक नाफा/नोक्सान		(७,०७०,४७०)	(६४,०४०,१३०)	(0,000,800)	(६४,०४०,१३०)
माथि उल्लेख गरिएका बुंदाको आयकर		१४१,४२३,४६४	(७६,३०८,४४३)	१४१,४२३,४६४	(७६,३०८,४४३)
यस वर्षको आयकर पछिको अन्य विस्तृत आम्दानी		(३४३,४४४,९८२)	१७८,०४३,२६६	(३४३,४४४,९८२)	१७८,०४३,२६६
जम्मा विस्तृत आम्दानी		९७२,६३७,४९९	૧,૪૧૪,૨૬૭,૬૦૧	९६७,६३२,६६४	૧,૬૧૪,૨૬७,૬૦૧
कुल विस्तृत आम्दानीको वांडफांड					
बैंकको इक्विटी शेयर धनी		९७०,९६९,२२१	૧,૬૧૪,૨૬૭,૬૦૧	९६७,६३२,६६४	૧,૬૧૪,૨૬૭,૬૦૧
गैर नियन्त्रित स्वार्थ		१,६६८,२७८	-	-	-
जम्मा विस्तृत आम्दानी		९७२,६३७,४९९	૧,૫૧૪,૨૬७,૬૦૧	९६७,६३२,६६४	१,४१४,२९७,६०१

द..... सि.ए.चन्द्र राज शर्मा प्रमुख वित्त अधिकृत

द..... राधेश पन्त संचालक

द..... प्रा.डा.हेम राज सुवेदी संचालक द..... शोभन देव पन्त प्रमुख कार्यकारी अधिकृत

द..... जितेन्द्र धिताल संचालक

द..... गोविन्द प्रसाद शर्मा संचालक द..... प्रकाश श्रेष्ठ अध्यक्ष

द..... मदल लाल जोशी संचालक

द..... दिव्य निधि विष्ट संचालक आजको मितिमा संलग्न प्रतिवेदन अनुसार

द..... सि.ए. एस आर पाण्डे बरिष्ठ साभेदार एस आर पाण्डे एण्ड कम्पनी चार्टर्ड एकाउन्टेण्ट्स

मितिः २७ मंसिर २०७५ स्थानः काठमाडौं ।

चौबीसौं वार्षिक प्रतिवेदन २०७४/७५



## Bank of Kathmandu Limited Principal Indicators

	Particulars	FY 74/75	FY 73/74	FY 2072/73	FY 2071/72	FY 70/71
1	Percent of Net Profit/Gross Income	33.75%	40.40%	31.89%	17.85%	15.39%
2	Earning Per Share	19.46	20.69	14.86	15.78	13.25
3	Market Value Per Share	265	462	464	571.00	564.00
4	Price Earning Ratio	13.62	22.33	31.22	36.19	42.56
5	Dividend (including bonus) on Share Capital	25.00%	13.25%	23.00%	27.37%	10.96%
6	Cash Dividend on Share Capital	11.00%	0.00%	0.00%	1.37%	0.55%
7	Interest Income/ Loan and Advances	11.79%	9.60%	5.03%	8.23%	8.62%
8	Staff Expenses/ Total Operating Ex- penses	65.40%	63.19%	58.15%	12.71%	14.25%
9	Interest Expenses/ Total Deposit & Borrowing	6.81%	4.80%	2.23%	3.61%	4.01%
10	Exchange Gain/ Total Income	6.16%	6.96%	8.37%	4.84%	4.78%
11	Staff Bonus/ Total Staff Expenses	20.42%	19.92%	18.00%	12.09%	9.90%
12	Net Profit/ Loan and Advances	1.95%	2.19%	1.16%	1.00%	0.88%
13	Net Profit/ Total Assets	1.45%	1.57%	0.84%	0.74%	0.65%
14	Total Credit/ Deposit	87.92%	83.67%	86.08%	84.61%	84.61%
15	Total Operating Expenses/ Total Assets	1.73%	1.78%	1.14%	7.13%	6.87%
16	Adequacy of Capital Fund on Risk Weighted Assets	14.88%	13.41%	13.01%	13.00%	11.57%
17	Liquidity (CRR)	7.30%	9.36%	8.71%	9.98%	6.82%
18	Non-performing credit/ Total Credit	3.04%	1.29%	2.51%	3.47%	1.06%
19	Base Rate	10.67%	10.57%	6.89%	7.20%	7.49%
20	Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread	4.98%	4.80%	2.80%	3.93%	4.14%
21	Book Net-worth per share	176.32	176.91	184.50	181.78	184.80
22	Total Shares	70,728,959	56,295,760	45,768,910	21,202,123	19,202,123
23	Total Staff	779	803	783	526	556

CA. Chandra Raj Sharma Chief Financial Officer

Prof. Hem Raj Subedi, Ph. D

Date: 13-Dec- 2018 Place: Kathmandu

Radhesh Pant Director

Director

Shovan Dev Pant Chief Executive Officer

Jitendra Dhital Director

Govinda Prasad Sharma Director Prakash Shrestha Chairman

Madan Lal Joshi Director

Dibya Nidhi Bista Director As per our report of even date

CA. Sudarshan Raj Pandey Partner S. R. Pandey & Co. Chartered Accountants

							(Amount in NPR)
			Group			NMB	
Particulars	Note	As at 32 Asar 2075	As at 31 Asar 2074	As at 31 Asar 2073	As at 32 Asar 2075	As at 31 Asar 2074	As at 31 Asar 2073
Assets							
Cash and cash equivalent	4.1	6,028,153,441	6,458,150,739	7,105,435,630	5,183,938,214	5,499,968,622	6,757,540,896
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank	4.2	6,864,740,937	9,252,184,991	6,395,815,135	6,840,510,937	9,242,454,991	6,390,585,135
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions	4.3	208,514,045	137,637,401	1,622,893,375	276,407,171	681,934,928	1,632,360,961
Derivative financial instruments	4.4	7,506,751,485	5,425,634,220	3,666,599,873	7,506,751,485	5,425,634,220	3,666,599,873
Other trading assets	4.5	321,720,000	298,280,000	200,000	321,720,000	298,280,000	200,000
Loan and advances to B/FIs	4.6	2,497,567,769	1,869,100,231	1,425,995,187	2,497,567,769	1,869,100,231	1,425,995,187
Loans and advances to customers	4.7	74,413,584,770	61,405,969,132	52,743,422,610	72,711,771,766	59,886,961,418	52,006,836,331
Investment securities	4.8	9,608,368,211	7,575,288,880	4,491,043,825	9,448,446,725	7,480,981,172	4,437,770,882
Current tax assets	4.9	863,139,882	805,645,307	514,467,392	763,884,764	719,526,541	466,635,611
Investment in susidiaries	4.10	1	I	I	248,552,000	148,552,000	120,400,000
Investment in associates	4.11	I	I	I	I	I	I
Investment property	4.12	59,774,627	77,488,827	69,968,627	59,774,627	77,488,827	69,968,627
Property and equipment	4.13	1,595,084,763	1,465,081,851	1,341,902,821	1,559,569,574	1,436,619,106	1,329,744,034
Goodwill and Intangible assets	4.14	22,643,811	16,084,906	16,386,684	22,054,209	15,697,146	15,775,309
Deferred tax assets	4.15	69,938,833	564,733		66,869,011	I	I
Other assets	4.16	4,913,860,467	319,333,511	569,393,845	4,883,611,861	291,223,308	544,556,369
Total Assets		114,973,843,041	95,106,444,729	79,963,525,004	112,391,430,113	93,074,422,511	78,864,969,215

**Consolidated Statement of Financial Position** As at 32 Asar, 2075 (16 July, 2018 )

www.nmbbanknepal.com

	Note	As at 32 Asar 2075	As at 31 Asar 2074	As at 31 Asar 2073	As at 32 Asar 2075	As at 31 Asar 2074	As at 31 Asar 2073
Liabilities							
Due to Bank and Financial Instituions	4.17	1,036,268,951	906,395,995	1,328,575,351	1,036,268,951	906,395,995	1,328,575,351
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank	4.18	660,071,641	1,110,558,800	1,377,300,000	660,071,641	1,110,558,800	1,377,300,000
Derivative financial instruments	4.19	7,477,483,892	5,393,031,265	3,643,347,688	7,477,483,892	5,393,031,265	3,643,347,688
Deposits from customers	4.20	84,509,502,746	72,137,541,062	63,616,155,330	83,970,867,219	72,317,666,604	63,452,888,272
Borrowing	4.21	1,182,081,898	1,240,930,359	771,202,579	I	55,347,308	110,694,615
Current Tax Liabilities	4.9	923,191,366	671,976,626	361,155,139	824,302,920	588,774,303	313,840,105
Provisions	4.22	9,152,000	9,977,608	17,894,559	9,078,444	9,804,595	17,859,204
Deferred tax liabilities	4.15	5,871,843	72,598,243	63,972,250	I	69,197,225	60,168,466
Other liabilities	4.23	1,871,616,566	1,849,594,340	966,661,068	1,405,999,800	1,203,837,692	892,714,998
Debt securities issued	4.24	517,547,945	517,547,945	517,547,945	517,547,945	517,547,945	517,547,945
Subordinated Liabilities	4.25	I	I	I	I	I	I
Total liabilities		98,192,788,848	83,910,152,243	72,663,811,909	95,901,620,812	82,172,161,732	71,714,936,644
Equity							
Share capital	4.26	7,603,290,634	6,461,774,334	4,486,924,065	7,603,290,634	6,461,774,334	4,486,924,066
Share premium		4,066,854,498	1,444,715,109	10,150,347	4,061,366,586	1,424,857,947	10,150,347
Retained earnings		2,476,497,798	1,513,818,419	1,460,042,894	2,339,181,597	1,364,948,851	1,378,156,309
Reserves	4.27	2,502,931,208	1,664,127,765	1,288,071,691	2,485,970,484	1,650,679,647	1,274,801,849
Total equity attributable to equity holders		16,649,574,138	11,084,435,628	7,245,188,997	16,489,809,301	10,902,260,779	7,150,032,571
Non-controlling interest		131,480,054	111,856,859	54,524,097	I	I	I
Total equity		16,781,054,193	11,196,292,487	7,299,713,095	16,489,809,301	10,902,260,779	7,150,032,571
Total liabilities and equity		114,973,843,041	95,106,444,729	79,963,525,004	112,391,430,113	93,074,422,511	78,864,969,215
							- +

As per our attached report of even date

<b>Rajendra Kafle</b>	<b>Pradeep Pradhan</b>
Director	Chief Operating Officer
<b>Nico Pijl</b>	<b>Pradeep Raj Pandey</b>
Director	Director
<b>Pawan Kumar Golyan</b>	<b>Hari Babu Neupane</b>
Chairman	Director
<b>Sunil KC</b>	<b>Harischandra Subedi</b>
CEO	Director

Date: Wednesday, November 21, 2018 Place: NMB Bhawan, Babarmahal, Kathmandu

**Sunir Kumar Dhungel** Managing Partner SAR Associates Chartered Accountants

**Mridul Parajuli** Head-Finance & Planning

# **Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss**

For the year ended 32 Asar, 2075 (16 July 2018 )

	(Amount in NPR)							
		Gro	up	NN	1B			
Particulars	Note	Year ended 32 Asar 2075	Year ended 31 Asar 2074	Year ended 32 Asar 2075	Year ended 31 Asar 2074			
Interest income	4.29	9,169,057,454	6,438,559,594	8,728,699,831	6,109,326,827			
Interest expense	4.30	6,036,130,108	3,607,946,050	5,824,685,753	3,505,347,281			
Net interest income		3,132,927,346	2,830,613,544	2,904,014,078	2,603,979,546			
Fee and commission income	4.31	939,618,308	759,120,248	794,250,068	635,069,204			
Fee and commission expense	4.32	69,926,838	51,976,715	62,708,027	51,082,047			
Net fee and commission income		869,691,470	707,143,534	731,542,041	583,987,157			
Net interest, fee and commission income		4,002,618,816	3,537,757,077	3,635,556,119	3,187,966,703			
Net trading income	4.33	299,605,983	154,789,626	299,605,983	154,789,626			
Other operating income	4.34	169,107,837	130,353,935	164,962,228	121,978,264			
Total operating income		4,471,332,637	3,822,900,639	4,100,124,330	3,464,734,593			
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses	4.35	(192,047,347)	28,949,952	(219,650,789)	13,569,888			
Net operating income		4,663,379,984	3,793,950,687	4,319,775,119	3,451,164,705			
Operating expense								
Personnel expenses	4.36	1,157,939,860	932,000,458	1,021,570,435	826,873,970			
Other operating expenses	4.37	644,860,665	537,201,837	589,394,199	492,213,506			
Depreciation & Amortisation	4.38	155,987,560	121,751,116	147,695,238	115,783,837			
Operating Profit		2,704,591,898	2,202,997,276	2,561,115,247	2,016,293,392			
Non operating income	4.39	43,140,193	136,349,614	43,140,193	136,349,614			
Non operating expense	4.40	37,935,379	48,225,932	37,935,379	48,225,932			
Profit before income tax		2,709,796,712	2,291,120,958	2,566,320,061	2,104,417,074			
Income tax expense	4.41							
Current Tax		865,791,637	638,610,557	829,621,042	589,304,078			
Deferred Tax expense/(Income)		(116,372,096)	28,405,484	(117,093,734)	26,495,906			
Profit for the period		1,960,377,171	1,624,104,918	1,853,792,753	1,488,617,090			
Profit attributable to:								
Equity holders of the Bank		1,940,103,355	1,598,166,919	1,853,792,753	1,488,617,090			
Non-controlling interest		20,273,815	25,937,999	-	-			
Profit for the period		1,960,377,170	1,624,104,918	1,853,792,753	1,488,617,090			
Earnings per share								
Basic earnings per share		29.27	28.64	28.67	27.27			
Diluted earnings per share		29.27	28.64	28.67	27.27			

As per our attached report of even date

Sunil KC CEO **Pawan Kumar Golyan** Chairman **Nico Pijl** Director Rajendra Kafle Director Sunir Kumar Dhungel Managing Partner SAR Associates Chartered Accountants

Harischandra Subedi Director Hari Babu Neupane Director Pradeep Raj Pandey Director Pradeep Pradhan Chief Operating Officer **Mridul Parajuli** Head-Finance & Planning

Date: Wednesday, November 21, 2018 Place: NMB Bhawan, Babarmahal, Kathmandu

# Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income For the year ended 32 Asar, 2075 (16 July 2018)

	Gro	up	NN	1B
Particulars	Year ended 32 Asar 2075	Year ended 31 Asar 2074	Year ended 32 Asar 2075	Year ended 31 Asar 2074
Profit for the year	1,960,377,171	1,624,104,918	1,853,792,753	1,488,617,090
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax				
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss				
- Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value	(41,011,310)	(34,045,996)	(38,270,067)	(26,323,464)
- Gains/(losses) on revalution	-	-	-	-
- Atuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans	(24,750,032)	(33,768,085)	(24,971,604)	(31,900,363)
-Income tax relating to above items	(19,861,346)	(19,223,591)	(18,972,501)	(17,467,148)
Net other comprehsive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss	(46,032,939)	(47,469,857)	(44,269,170)	(40,756,679)
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss	-	-	-	-
- Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge	-	-	-	-
- Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)	-	-	-	-
- Income tax relating to above items	-	-	-	-
- Reclassify to profit or loss	-	-	-	-
Net other comprehsive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss	-	-	-	-
c) Share of other comprehensive income of associate accounted as per equited method	-	-	-	-
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of income tax	(46,032,939)	(47,469,857)	(44,269,170)	(40,756,679)
Total comprehensive income for the period	1,914,344,230	1,576,635,061	1,809,523,583	1,447,860,411
Total comprehensive income attributable to:				
Equity holders of the Bank	1,893,994,416	1,551,337,691	1,809,523,583	1,447,860,411
Non-controlling interest	20,349,814	25,297,370	-	-
Total comprehensive income for the period	1,914,344,230	1,576,635,061	1,809,523,583	1,447,860,411

As per our attached report of even date

(Amount in NDD)

Sunil KC CEO

**Pawan Kumar Golyan** Chairman

**Nico Pijl** Director

Rajendra Kafle Director

Harischandra Subedi Director

Hari Babu Neupane Director

Pradeep Raj Pandey Director

Pradeep Pradhan Chief Operating Officer Sunir Kumar Dhungel Managing Partner SAR Associates **Chartered Accountants** 

Mridul Parajuli Head-Finance & Planning

Date: Wednesday, November 21, 2018 Place: NMB Bhawan, Babarmahal, Kathmandu

# **Additional Disclosures**

Financial Year 16 July 2017 to 16 July 2018 (1 Shrawan 2074 to 32 Ashad 2075)

#### 13. Principal Indicators

The principal indicators of the bank for the past 5 years are as follows:

	Particulars	Indicators	FY 2070/71	FY 2071/72	FY 2072/73	FY 2073/74	FY 2074/75
1	Percent of Net Profit/Gross Income	Percent	16.34	18.42	20.90	20.52	18.09
2	Earnings Per Share	Rs.	20.50	25.05	27.78	26.88	28.67
3	Market Value Per Share	Rs.	515	507	810	545	358
4	Price Earnings Ratio	Ratio	25.13	20.24	29.15	20.27	12.48
5	Dividend (including bonus) on Share Capital	Percent	21.05	8.42	20.00	15.79	30.00
6	Cash Dividend on Share Capital	Percent	1.05	0.42	1.00	0.79	20.00
7	Interest Income/Loan & Advances	Percent	9.10	7.86	7.16	9.26	10.78
8	Staff Expenses/Total Operating Expenses	Percent	45.23	48.66	57.15	55.03	58.09
9	Interest Expenses on Total Deposit and Borrowing	Percent	4.49	3.63	3.08	4.71	6.76
10	Exchange Gain/Total Assets	Percent	0.32	0.29	0.21	0.24	0.27
11	Staff Bonus/Total Staff Expenses	Percent	39.12	35.32	34.01	34.77	38.72
12	Net Profit/Loan and Advances	Percent	1.97	1.81	2.05	2.34	2.43
13	Net Profit/Total Assets	Ratio	1.36	1.21	1.49	1.69	1.65
14	Total Credit/Deposit	Percent	76.73	75.32	84.07	85.50	90.46
15	Total Operating Expenses/Total Assets	Percent	1.52	1.36	1.48	1.69	1.56
16	Adequacy of Capital Fund on Risk Weighted Assets						
	a) Core Capital	Percent	9.91	8.84	9.34	12.39	14.78
	b) Supplementary Capital	Percent	0.84	2.29	1.64	1.22	0.97
	c) Total Capital Fund	Percent	10.75	11.13	10.98	13.61	15.75
17	Liquidity (CRR)	Ratio	13.72	13.32	10.81	7.72	6.68
18	Non-performing credit/Total credit	Percent	0.55	0.42	1.81	1.68	0.88
19	Base Rate	Percent	8.12	7.89	6.68	10.12	10.70
20	Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread	Percent	4.11	4.19	4.31	3.89	3.45
21	Book Net-worth	Rs. in '000	2,812,950	3,296,447	6,861,160	10,627,149	16,489,809
22	Total Shares	Nos. in '000	20,000	24,000	44,869	64,618	76,033
23	Total Staff	Number	322	357	755	918	1,080
24	No of Branches	Number	29	29	69	80	110
25	No of ATMs	Number	33	37	49	66	96

मिति - मंसिर ६, २०७५ (22 November 2018) काठमाडौँ

(संचालकहरू)

- द. राजेश कुमार केडिया
- द. दिनेश शंकर पालिखे
- द. विरेन्द्र कुमार शाह
- द. नरेन्द्र कुमार अग्रवाल
- द. प्रमेश श्रेष्ठ प्रबन्धक - वित्त तथा लेखा

द. मनोज कुमार केडिया अध्यक्ष

द. सुन्दर प्र. कडेल नायव प्रमुख कार्यकारी अधिकृत

प्रमुख कार्यकारी अधिकृत

आजको मितिको संलग्न प्रतिवेदन अनुसार सुनिर कुमार ढुङ्केल साभेदार एस. ए. आर. एसोसिएट्स

चार्टर्ड एकाउण्टेण्टस्

# द. शम्भू नाथ गौतम

सम्पत्तिमा लगानी (Investment Property)	૪.૧ર	૧૪૪,૬૨૭,૪३૪	૧૪૪,૬૨૭,૪३૪	૧૪૪,૬૨૭,૪૨૪	૧૪૪,૬૨૭,૪३૪	૧૮૪,૬૨૭,૫૨૫	૧૪૪,૬३७,૫३૫
सम्पत्ति तथा उपकरण	૪.૧ર	<b>୩,</b> ୩୦୦,୩ <del>୮</del>	७४८,७९४,९३२	६३४,२१२,६०३	१,०७२,३२२,८०८	७१८,७२६,४२४	६१८,८२४,०७४
ख्याती र अमूर्त सम्पत्ति	૪.૧૪	१३,३०९,२२०	ঀ३,५५२,४३०	ર,⊂ ૬૭,૭૭૪	१२,०८९,०८३	<u> </u>	३,०९०,४२६
स्थगन कर सम्पत्ति	૪.૧૪	-	-	-	-	-	-
अन्य सम्पत्ति	૪.૧૬	१,२७४,६०३,८४९	४१६,८११,६८२	<i>६</i> ४९,२६४,७८ ४	१,२३६,४५०,११२	<b></b>	६२१,६०७,३२८
कूल सम्पत्ति		<b>१२०,२</b> ४७,३४ <i>६,</i> ६७७	९ঀ.६০४,२४३,८३१	७६,५९३,४८०,९८२	<u> </u>	९९.१८८६,१०२,८९१	७६,૧૨૪,९४७,९૧९
		आषाढ मसान्त २०७५	आषाढ मसान्त २०७४	आषाढ मसान्त २०७३	आषाढ मसान्त २०७५	आषाढ मसान्त २०७४	आषाढ मसान्त २०७३
दायित्व							
बैंक तथा वित्तिय संस्थाहरूलाई तिर्न बाँकी	૪.૧૭	७,४४८८,५१४,७११	५,९०१,७४३,१३०	ଟ,୦୨୨,ଽ୪୨,७७ଟ	७,४४८,५१४,७११	५,९०१,७४३,१३०	८,०११,६४१,७७८
नेपाल राष्ट्र बैकलाई तिर्न बाँकी	४.१८	६९२,४२६,९२०	૨૦૬૭૧૪,૦૨૬	६०,०००,०००	६९२,४२६,९२०	২০২,৩৭४,০३९	६०,०००,०००
डेरिभेटिभ वित्तीय उपकरण	૪.૧૬	७३,७४४,८००	-	-	७३,७४४,८००	-	-
ग्राहकको निक्षेप	४.२०	९४,२४५,३८९,९८४	७०,४३७,७४६,१६९	५७,७४०,७४६,७७३	૬૪,૬૭૬,૬९૧,૧૨३	૭૧,૪૧ <u></u> ,,૮૧૬,૧૬	୪७,७७२,७०६,७७३
तिर्न बाँकी कर्जा सापटी	૪.૨૧	-	-	-	-	-	-
चालु कर दायित्व	૪.૬	-	-	-	-	-	-
व्यवस्था	४.२२	-	-	-	-	-	-
स्थगन कर दायित्व	૪.૧૪	२६०,९७३,२६२	४०३,४७१,९९७	४३३,४२९,५५०	૨૬૧,૬૧३,૧૪૬	३९३,८०४,७३३	४२२,६२१,८६८
अन्य दायित्व	४.२३	२,२८८,११४,२३९	ঀ,७३४,४४२,७३४	ঀ,ৼঽঽ,७४ঀ,४০০	<b>૧.</b> ९୦६.६६९.५६१	ঀ,০४६,३२०,০০৬	<b>ঀ,ঀ</b> ৼৼ,ঀৼৼ,ৼৼ
जारी गरिएको ऋणपत्र	૪.૨૪	ঀ,२०३,४२०,०००	<i>ঀ</i> ,२०३, <b>१२०,०</b> ००	9,२०३,४२०,०००	<i>ঀ</i> ,२०३, <b>४२०,०</b> ००	ঀ,२०३,४२०,०००	<b>ঀ,२०३,</b> ४२०,०००
सुरक्षण नराखिएको सहायक आवद्यिक दायित्व	૪.૨૫	-	-	-	-	-	-
कूल दायित्व		<b>૧૦</b> ૬,૨૧૨,૬ <b>૬</b> ૪,९૧૬	८०७१८६६३८,०७०	६८,९७२,०९९,४०२	<b>୩୦</b> ६,୩६६, <b>३</b> ९୦,२७१	<u>୮୦,୪६६,९१୮,୦७୮</u>	<b>६</b> ८,६२६,६६९९८४
इक्विटी							
शेयर पूँजी	४.२६	८,४६४,३८४,२७६	६,६२८,८७८,९४२	३,०२२,८८०,४६३	८,४६४,३८४,२७६	६,६२८,८७८,९४२	३,०२२,८८०,४६३
शेयर प्रिमियम		ঀ२२,०९ঀ,ৼ৹ৼ	ঀ२०,२३०,ঀ६७	-	૧૨૨,૦૬૧,૫૦૫	ঀ२०,२३०,ঀ६७	-
संचित मुनाफा		૧,૨૬૬,३३४,७४૧	ঀ,४३२,ঀ७७,३४९	<i>१,९५९,६४८</i> ,,६२०	१,१८४,४२६,०३३	१,३१७,८९१,७८९	१,९२४,४८९,२४७
जगेडा तथा कोषहरू	૪.૨૭	३,९९९,३४४,७३०	३,०६५,१०८,१३८	૨,૬૬૨,૬૪,૬૨૬	३,९३१,९२५,४८०	३,०४२,१⊏३,९१४	२,४४०,८०८,१२३
शेयर धनीहरूलाई वाँडफाँड योग्य कुल इक्विटी		१३,८४२,१६८,२६२	<i>ঀঀ</i> ,२४ <i>६</i> ,३९४,४९६	७,४३६,०७४,८२२	१३.७०२.८२८,२९३	११,११९,१८४,८१३	७,४९८,२७७,९३४
गैर नियन्त्रित स्वार्थ (Non-Controlling Interest)		१९२,४८३,४९९	૧૭૧,૨૨૧,૧૬૪	<i></i>	-	-	-
कूल इक्विटी		ঀ४,০४४,६१९,७६१	<b>ঀঀ</b> ,४ <b>ঀ७</b> ,६ঀ <u>ৼ</u> ,७६୦	७,६२१,३८९४८०	ঀ३,७०२,८२८,२९३	<b>१९,११९,१</b> ८४,८१३	७,४९८,२७७,९३४
कूल दायित्व र इक्विटी		<u> </u>	९१.६०४.२४३.८३१	७६.१९३,४८०,९८२	<u>११</u> ९८६६९२१८,१६४	९९.४८६.१०२.८९१	७६,१२४,९४७,९१९
संभावित दायित्व तथा प्रतिवद्धता	४.२८	२३,९९०,७४९,६२३	१५,१८२,९९०,३०७	१३,०९८,६४७,४१०	२२,८६८,६४२,६२३	१४,१८२२,९९०,३०७	ঀ३,०९८,६१७,११०
प्रति शेयर खुद सम्पत्ति		૧૬૨.૬૪	१६९.६६	२४९.३०	१६१.८९	૧૬૭.૭૪	२४८.०१
				•			

एकिकृत वित्तीय अवस्थाको विवरण (वासलात) आषाढ मसान्त १०७५ (१६ जुलाई १०१८)

समूह

आषाढ मसान्त २०७४

३.४९२.९४४.३६८

६,६७२,३३०,९०६

४६७,३२४,०००

२८,६३७,२३९

28,255,200

२,४१९,०४३,६६२

६४,६४२,७७९,४२४

१२,२१२,९४५,७३०

६९,८२६१,३१४

आषाढ मसान्त २०७३

३,७४१,२३३,९१९

३,८४७,२६८,०३९

७४४,७३०,३९७

२४,१४१,९६०

३४,३९४,०४८

9,895,202,000

४४,७४८,९४८,९२०

१०,४३४,७७८,४६६

८८.४४६,४३४

आषाढ मसान्त २०७५

૪,૪૫૨,૨૧૨,૨૫૫

६,४५४,९२७,२४३

9,599,930,000

3,004,048

८,३१७,७३९

२,<del>८</del>४९,१६६,३०६

८३,२३६,०८७,४३५

१८,४९२,९४२,४३३

६८,२२८,७४७

لام,000,000

रकम रू मा

आषाढ मसान्त २०७३

३,३७८,२३९,३२४

३,८४७,२६८,०३९

७४४,७३०,३९७

२४,१४१,९६०

२९,७४७,९२०

9,895,808,000

५४,७४८,९५८,९२०

१०,३४२,६४८,०४६

८३,४२७,८३६

४९,०००,०००

🖑 सम्बन्ध सधैंभरिलाई 📎

बैंक

आषाढ मसान्त २०७४

३,८७९,८८०,४४३

**६,६७२,३३०,९०**६

४६७,३२४,०००

२८,६३७,२३९

४०,९९१,१८८

२,४१९,०४३,६६२

**६४,६**४९,**९**४९,४३९

११,९७१,२९६,३५४

४८,६७१,९९४

४१,०००,०००



नेपाल राष्ट्र बैंकमा रहेको मौज्दात तथा लिनु पर्ने

बैक तथा वित्तीय संस्थालाई दिएको कर्जा तथा सापट

बैंक तथा वित्तीय संस्थामा रहेको मौज्दात

ग्राहकलाई दिएको कर्जा तथा सापट

धितोपत्रमा (securities) लगानी

सम्पत्ति

नगद तथा नगद समान

डेरिभेटिभ वित्तीय उपकरण

अन्य व्यापारिक सम्पत्तिहरू

सहायक कम्पनीमा लगानी

सम्बद्ध कम्पनीमा लगानी

चालु कर सम्पत्ति

नोट

٧.٩

8.2

Υ.३

8.8

૪.૪

૪.૬

४.७

४.८

۲**.**۹

8.90

४.११

आषाढ मसान्त २०७५

૪,૪૧૪,૪३६,૧૭૪

६,४५४,९२७,२४३

9,६99,9३0,000

3,004,045

90३,४१३,४३२

२,**८**४१,१६६,३०६

८३,२३७,४८२,१६०

१८,८७७,९४२,४३१

६९,३१४,३४७



### एकिकृत नाफा नोक्सान विवरण

# १ आवण २०७८ देखि ३२ आषाढ २०७५ सम्म (१६ जुलाई २०१७ देखि १६ जुलाई २०१८ सम्म) रकम ऊ मा

					(47-1 (9, -1)
		सग	ਰਸੂ	बैंक	5
	नाट	यस वर्ष	गत वर्ष	यस वर्ष	गत वर्ष
व्याज आम्दानी	૪.૨૬	୧୦,୦ <i>୧</i> ୣଽ,୧७३,୧७२	६,८४०४,३१४	ঀ০,০ৼ७,০০२,ৼ९४	६,६२५,३०२,७२२
व्याज खर्च	४.३०	६,४८७,८१९१२९	३,९७३,९४५,४३८	६,६२०,७४४,०५७	३,९९८,१६४,४३८
खुद व्याज आम्दानी		₹,ҲѺҀ,⋛ҲӼ,ѺӼӼ	२,८८३,४४९९१६	३,४३६,२४८,४३८	२.६२७.१३७.२८४
शुल्क तथा कमिशन आम्दानी	૪.३૧	<i>दद्द्द्</i> द्	६१३,९०२,६७४	७७९,७०४,०४१	୪၃۹,६૧୦,९७६
शुल्क तथा कमिशन खर्च	૪.३२	१३८,७४६,४८४	ঀঽৼ,४ৼ০,३০९	ঀ૨७,९୦३,२७७	ঀঀ९९३९७०३
खृद शुल्क र कमिशन आम्दानी		७२७,९३५,८५९	४७८,४५२,३६५	६५१,८००,७६४	୪୦۹,६७۹,२७३
खुद व्याज, शुल्क र कमिशन आम्दानी		४,२३६,२८९७३	३,३६१,९०२,२८०	४,०८८,०१९३०२	३,०२८,८०८,४१६
खुद व्यापारिक आम्दानी	४.३३	२४४,४३९,७८३	१४८,४२५,९३४	२४८,६८०,७०९	१४५,१७१,१७८
अन्य संचालन आम्दानी	૪.३૪	३४५,६०३,३०२	२४९,७८४,०४२	३०८,४९७,२४८	२४२,२२१,७८२
जम्मा संचालन आम्दानी		४,८४६,४२४,९८८	રૂ.७६૦,૧૧૨,૨૫૬	૪,૬૫૫,૨३७,૨૫૬	રૂ,૪૧૬,૨૦૧,૫૧૬
कर्जाको जोखिम व्यवस्था/(फिर्ता) तथा अन्य नोक्सानी	૪.ર૪	२३०,३९३,४४०	१२०,०९२,७८९	२३०,३९३,४४०	१२०,०९२,७८९
खुद संचालन आम्दानी		४,६१६,०३१,४४८	३,६४०,०१९,४६७	४,४२४,८४३,७१९	३,२९६,१०८,७२८
सञ्चालन खर्च					
कर्मचारी खर्च	૪.३६	<b>ঀ</b> ,ঀ२४,६९९,६८५	८ १४,९४५,९१२	१,०८५,८४४,१८८	હદ્દર,૦રૂપ્ર,૧૦૫
अन्य सञ्चालन खर्च	૪.ર૭	५०९,४९०,०४९	४०४,९४०,८०२	४९०,९२०,६०८	३८४,६७९,२८४
ह्रासकट्टी र परिषोधन (Amortization)	४.३८	<b>୧</b> ୧ <u>୪</u> ,७ <b>୧୪</b> ,६७६	९८,२६९,३०२	ঀঀ৾৾৾ঢ়৾৾৻ৼ৾৾ৼ৾৾৻৻ড়৾৾৽	<i>૬</i> ૨,૬ <u>૫</u> , ૬૧૨
सञ्चालन मुनाफा		२,८५६,१२७,०३९	२,३२ <b>९,</b> ८६३,४४१	२,७२९६२४,८५२	२,०१४,४३८,४२८
गैर सञ्चालन आम्दानी	૪.३९	६९८,४३९	লওগ্নওণ্১	800,000	-
गैर सञ्चालन नोक्सानी	8.80	-	७३,४६८,७१४	-	७३,४६८,७११
आय कर अघिको मुनाफा		२,८४६,८२५,४७८	<i>૨,૨૪૬,૨</i> ७૦,૪ <b>૫</b> ૧	२,७३०,०२४,८५२	<b>ঀ</b> ,९ <del>८</del> ०,९६९,७१०
आयकर खर्च	૪.૪૧				
चालु कर		<b>८१३,४१९,४९</b> ८	<b>६</b> ५८,९०९,९५५	८१९७००,८७०	୪୧၃,७६९,७१୦
स्थगन कर		४,३७५,४३०	(૧३,૨૧૪,૧૪३)	<i>६,२६२,४७</i> ८	(୧୪,୦९୪,३୦६)
यस अवधिको मुनाफा		<b>૧.</b> ९९ <del>୮.</del> .୧९୦. <b></b> ୧୪୦	ঀ,६०३,१७४,६४९	<b>૧,९୦୪,୦</b> ६ <b>૧,</b> ୪୦୪	<b>૧,</b> ୪୦၃,၃९୪, <b>३</b> ୦६
नाफा वॉडफॉड					
बैंकको शेयर धनी		<i>૧,૬</i> ૫૨,૪७૫,३१७	<b>૧</b> , <b>૫૦૪,</b> ९४७,२ <del>८</del> १	<i>ঀ,९</i> ୦४,୦ <b>६</b> ঀ, <b></b> ५୦४	<b>९,४०२,२९४,</b> ३०६
गैर नियन्त्रित स्वार्थ (Non-Controlling Interest)		૪૬.૫૧૫,૨३૨	९८,६२७,३६८	-	-
यस अवधिको मुनाफा		<u>୩,୧९</u> ⊏,୧୧୦, <b></b> ୪୪୦	<b>ঀ</b> ,६०३, <b></b> ७४,६४९	<u> </u>	<b>९,४०२,२९४,३०</b> ६
प्रति शेयर आम्दानी					
आधारभुत प्रति शेयर आम्दानी		રહ.હદ્	३०.४१	२६.४४	२६.६०
डाइलुटेड प्रति शेयर आम्दानी		રહ.હદ્	३०.४१	२६.४४	२६.६०

द. शम्भु नाथ गौतम प्रमुख कार्यकारी अधिकृत

द. सुन्दर प्र. कडेल नायव प्रमुख कार्यकारी अधिकृत

द. प्रमेश श्रेष्ठ प्रबन्धक - वित्त तथा लेखा

द. नरेन्द्र कुमार अग्रवाल

द. विरेन्द्र कुमार शाह

द. दिनेश शंकर पालिखे

- द. राजेश कुमार केडिया
  - (संचालकहरू)

मिति - मंसिर ६, २०७५ (22 November 2018) काठमाडौँ

द. मनोज कुमार केडिया अध्यक्ष

आजको मितिको संलग्न प्रतिवेदन अनुसार सुनिर कुमार ढुङ्केल साभोदार एस. ए. आर. एसोसिएट्स चार्टर्ड एकाउण्टेण्टस्

## एकिकृत अन्य विस्तृत आम्दानीको विवरण

#### १ आवण २०७४ देखि ३२ आषाट २०७५ सम्म (१६ जुलाई २०१७ देखि १६ जुलाई २०१८ सम्म)

					रकम रू. मा
	चोन	सग	नूह	बै	क
	๚เต	यस वर्ष	गत वर्ष	यस वर्ष	गत वर्ष
यस वर्षको मुनाफा		<del>ঀ</del> ,९९ <del>८,</del> ९९୦, <b></b> ५५୦	<b>ঀ</b> ,६०३, <b></b> ୯७४,६४९	<b>૧,९୦</b> ୪,୦ <b>६</b> ۹, <b>୧୦</b> ୪	<b>ঀ</b> ,४०२,२९४,३०६
आयकर पछिको अन्य विस्तृत आम्दानी					
क) नाफा/नोक्सानमा पुनः वर्गिकरण नगरिने बुँदाहरू					
फेयर मूल्यमा मुल्याङ्कन गरिएका इक्विटी		(୪९२,७३९,୦६१)	(१२,६८५,४९८)	(४४७,७२०,०८४)	(५०९५८८३४)
उपकरणका लगानीबाट भएका नाफा/(नोक्सान)					
पुनः मुल्याङ्कनबाट भएका नाफा/(नोक्सान)		-	-	-	-
परिभाषित (Defined) लाभ योजनाबाट विमाङ्किक (Actuarial)		(୧.୧७७,୧७୧)	(૪૪,३૬૪,૧૧૪)	(२,७९३,४३२)	(४३.९८०.२६६)
नाफा/(नोक्सान)					
माथि उल्लेख गरिएका वुँदाहरूको आयकर		૧૪૬. <b>⊏</b> ७४.ঀ६ <b></b>	ঀ৾৾ৼ,७३৾ৼ,४००	૧રૂ⊏,૧ <b>૫૪,૦</b> ૫૫	१४,७२२,८३०
नाफा/नोक्सानमा पुनः वर्गिकरण नगरिएका खुद अन्य विस्तृत आम्दानी		(३४८,१४२,८७१)	(૪૦,३१४,२१२)	(३२२,३१९४६२)	(३४,३१३,२७०)
ख) नाफा/नोक्सानमा पुनः वर्गिकरण गरिएका वा गर्न सकिने बुँदाहरू					
नगद प्रवाहको हेजिङ्गबाट भएको नाफा/(नोक्सान)		-	-	-	-
Foreign Operations को कारण वित्तीय सम्पत्तिको विनिमय		-	-	-	-
(Exchange Rate) परिवर्तन गर्दा हुने सटही नाफा/(नोक्सान)					
माथि उल्लेख गरिएका वुँदाहरूको आयकर		-	-	-	-
नाफा/नोक्सानमा वर्गिकरण नगरिएका अन्य खुद विस्तृत आम्दानी		-	-	-	-
नाफा/नोक्सानमा पुनःवर्गिकरण गरिएका वा गर्न सकिने खुद		-	-	-	-
अन्य विस्तृत आम्दानी					
ग) इक्विटी विधिबाट (Equity Method) लेखांकन गरिएको		-	-	-	-
सम्बद्ध संस्थाको अन्य विस्तृत आम्दानीमा हिस्सा					
आयकर पछिको यस वर्षको अन्य विस्तृत आम्दानी		(३४८,५४२,८७५)	(४०,३१४,२१२)	(३२२,३१९४६२)	(३४,३४३,२७०)
कुल यस वर्षको विस्तृत आम्दानी		૧,૬૨૦,૪૪७,૬७૨	<b>૧.</b> ૫૬३.२६୦.४३८	<b>ঀ</b> ,ৼ <del>৾</del> ঀ,७०२,०४२	<b>૧</b> ,३६७,९४ <b>१</b> ,୦३६
कुल विस्तृत आम्दानीको वाँडफाँड					
बैंकको इक्विटी शेयर धनी		૧,૬૧૬,૭૬૨,३૧૫	<b>૧,૪૬</b> ७,૫્ <mark></mark> પ્રસ,९३૧	<b>ঀ</b> ,ৼ <del>৸</del> ঀৢ৻७०२,०४२	ঀ,३६७,९४ ঀ,୦३६
गैर नियन्त्रित स्वार्थ (Non-Controlling Interest)		३३.६८५.३६०	୧୪,୦୦୧,୪୦७	-	-
कुल विस्तृत आम्दानी		૧,૬૨૦,૪૪ ૭,૬૭૨	१.१६३.२६०.४३८	<b>१,५८</b> ९,७०२,०४२	ঀৢ৾৾३६७,९४ ঀৢ৾৾০३६

द. प्रमेश श्रेष्ठ

प्रबन्धक - वित्त तथा लेखा

द. नरेन्द्र कुमार अग्रवाल

- द. विरेन्द्र कुमार शाह
- द. दिनेश शंकर पालिखे
- द. राजेश कुमार केडिया

(संचालकहरू)

मिति - मंसिर ६, २०७५ (22 November 2018) काठमाडौँ **द. सुन्दर प्र. कडेल** नायव प्रमुख कार्यकारी अधिकृत

द. मनोज कुमार केडिया अध्यक्ष **द. शम्भु नाथ गौतम** प्रमुख कार्यकारी अधिकृत

आजको मितिको संलग्न प्रतिवेदन अनुसार **सुनिर कुमार ढुङ्केल** साम्केदार एस. ए. आर. एसोसिएट्स

चार्टर्ड एकाउण्टेण्टस्

वार्षिक प्रतिवेदन २०७४/७५



**Siddhartha**Bank Bank for Your Prosperity

99`

# प्रमुख सुचकाङ्कहरू (NFRS बमोजिम)

	<u>~</u>		आर्थिक वर्ष			
	विवरण	सूचकाङ्क	२०७३/७४	<b>૨</b> ૦७४/७५		
٩.	खुद नाफा/कुल आम्दानी	प्रतिशत	१८.६१%	૧૬.૭૦%		
ર.	प्रति शेयर आम्दानी	रू.	२६.६०	રદ્દ.૪૫		
ર.	प्रति शेयर बाजार मूल्य	ক.	४८४.००	३००.००		
٧.	मूल्य आम्दानी अनुपात (PE Ratio)	अनुपात	१८.२४	११.३४		
પ્ર.	शेयर पूँजीमा लाभांश (बोनस सहित)	प्रतिशत	૧૪ <b>.</b> ૦૦ <b>%</b>	વરૂ <b>.</b> વદ્દ <b>%</b>		
્ર.	शेयर पूँजीमा नगद लाभांश भुक्तानी	प्रतिशत	-	८.१६%		
૭.	व्याज आम्दानी/कर्जा तथा सापट	प्रतिशत	<b>૬.</b> ૧૨ <b>%</b>	१0. <i>८६</i> %		
۲.	कर्मचारी खर्च/कुल सञ्चालन खर्च	प्रतिशत	૧૪.૨૪%	१२ <b>.</b> ८६%		
٩.	व्याज खर्च/कुल निक्षेप तथा सापटी	प्रतिशत	૪.૪૭%	७.३३%		
90.	सटही घटबढ आम्दानी/कुल आम्दानी	प्रतिशत	ર.૧૬%	૨ <b>.</b> ३४ <b>%</b>		
99.	कर्मचारी बोनस/कुल कर्मचारी खर्च	प्रतिशत	૨૪.૭૬%	૨७ <b>.</b> ९४ <b>%</b>		
૧૨.	खुद नाफा/कर्जा तथा सापट	प्रतिशत	ર.૦ <b>૫%</b>	ર.૧૭%		
૧ર.	खुद नाफा/कुल सम्पत्ति	प्रतिशत	૧.૬ર%	૧. <b></b>		
૧૪.	कुल कर्जा/निक्षेप	प्रतिशत	<b>८८.४०%</b>	<u> </u>		
૧૪.	कुल सञ्चालन खर्च/कुल सम्पत्ति	प्रतिशत	<u>५.८५%</u>	७.०४ <b>%</b>		
૧૬.	जोखिम भारित सम्पत्तिमा पूँजीकोषको पर्याप्तता	İ				
	क) प्राथमिक पूँजी	प्रतिशत	૧૧.૦૨%	90.९९%		
	ख) पूरक पूँजी	प्रतिशत	૧.૭૨%	<b>૧.</b> ૧ર <b>%</b>		
	ग) कुल पूँजीकोष	प्रतिशत	૧૨.૭૪ <b>%</b>	૧૨ <b>.</b> ૧૨ <b>%</b>		
૧૭.	तरलता	प्रतिशत	८.६८%	૬ <b>.</b> રૂ७ <b>%</b>		
१८.	निष्क्रिय कर्जा/कुल कर्जा	प्रतिशत	૧.૨૦%	१.०९%		
૧૬.	जोखिम भारित व्याजदर अन्तर	प्रतिशत	ર.૪ <b>૬%</b>	ર. <b></b>		
२०.	बुक नेटवर्थ प्रति शेयर	ক.	୧ଽ७.७୪	१६१.८९		
૨૧.	कुल शेयर	संख्या	६६,२ <b>८८,७८९</b>	८४,६४३,८४३		
२२.	कुल कर्मचारी	संख्या	८०३	१,२२१		
२३.	आधार दर	प्रतिशत	१०.३८%	૧૧ <b>.</b> ૧૬ <b>%</b>		

## MERGER AND ITS IMPACT ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF COMMERCIAL BANKS IN NEPAL

**A Thesis Proposal** 

By

Bishnu Maya Ghimire

#### **Central Department of Management**

Class Roll No: 68

Exam Roll No: 1111/2017

Registration No: 7-1-38-796-2006

Submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirement for the degree of

Master of Business Management (MBS)

in the

**Faculty of Management** 

**Tribhuvan University** 

Kathmandu, Nepal

September, 2019

#### **1** Background of the study

Mergers, acquisitions and takeovers, consolidation have been a part of the business world for so many years ago. In today's dynamic economic environment, the main objective of a company is to maximize the shareholder's wealth. Through mergers and acquisitions, a company can develop a competitive advantage and ultimately increase shareholder value. A merger involves a blend of two companies, rather than mere legal enjoinment or absorption of one firm into another merger as a process in which one of the two companies loses its identity to make a one firm. In merger transaction involving two or more companies in the exchange of securities and only one company survives. (Kishore, 2009)

There are various strategic and financial objectives that influence mergers and acquisitions. According to Sudarsanam (2003) two organizations with often different corporate personalities, cultures and value systems are bought together. Merger or Amalgamation may take two forms: i) Merger through absorption: It is a combination of two or more companies combines together into an existing company. In absorption, all companies except one lose their identity. ii) Merger through consolidation: It is a combination of two or more companies into a new company. In case of consolidation through merger, all companies are legally dissolved and a new entity is created.

Bank mergers is claimed to be the sources of efficiency gains from the realization of economies of scale and economies of scope, the removal of overlapping services and the increasing awareness of innovative banking tools; however, one needs to read over the assertions with caution. It is due to the fact that much of the prior research has focused on the market driven merger or the voluntary merger. At the one hand, the voluntary bank merger refers to the process by which two or more banks merged and become one new entity. The merger takes place without any objection from the shareholders and the board of both banks. Banking sector plays a leading role in financing a country economic activities. Its performance is crucial in determining a country's economy growth and stability.

Performance of banking sector is measured by Capital adequacy, assets quality, management efficiency, earning efficiency, liquidity. Performance of the banks is measured at two level, one is at the management and regulatory level of the banks and another is at external rating agencies. Purpose of regulatory and supervisory rating systems is to measure the bank performance at internal level and its compliance with regulatory requirements to keep the bank on right track. These ratings are highly confidential and are only available to the bank management. External credit rating agencies examine and evaluate the banks and issue ratings for the general public and investor in particulars. It is great importance that both these rating present the same results about the condition of the banks to provider clear information to investor and management. The central bank planned to improve the health of the financial sector by introducing the Merger by law 2011 grounded on the Company Act 2006 article 177, BAFIA 2006 article 68 and 69 that pressurize all the BFIs for immediate merger as a consolidation. A merger was not a choice of the Nepal Rastra bank but it was a compulsion strategy to increase the capital and strengthen their capacity to face the competitive market. It is perceived that, merger will result in newer and larger organizations which are supposed to be efficient in allocating resources, human and capital and maximize the output gains. It is believed that the larger banks, with more resources can offer more products and services at lesser operating cost i.e. at economies of scale. However, the perceived gains do not occur, at least not to the extent that is perceived. Some of the genuine impacts or effect of mergers on the banking industry can be observed around the world, which has been the reduced availability of loans to the customer base after merger. It is mainly because of decline in competitiveness in banking industry and increase in the interest rates above reasonable level. Banks have been observed to be engaged in activities ranging from anti-competitiveness to corruption after the merger. When economies of scale are observed, there is a significant uncertainty over how wide the range of scale is. There is often increase in dissatisfaction among employees after merger of the institutions. A lot of issues can be found in the management of staff after the merger.

#### 2 Problem statement and research questions.

The study cover the analysis of the merger and its impact on financial performance of commercial banks in Nepal. Shareholders and managers of banks turn to mergers and acquisitions in the hope of improving financial performance in their banks but studies on this subject have produced mixed results. It is new concept in Nepalese BFIs and there is a lot of confusion about the merger and their impacts on the long term growth and profitability of the BFIs. Mergers have become the main means of attaining higher performance which is the ultimate goal of every firm, including banks. Some studies have suggested that merging banks perform better than the individual banks performed before the merger whereas other studies have not found any meaningful improvement in financial performance as a result of a merger.

Many studies carried out in the area of M&A have established inconsistent results. Failure means lowered productivity, labor unrest, higher absenteeism and loss of shareholder value. A study conduct by Shah & Khan (2017) on Impacts of Mergers and Acquisitions on Acquirer Banks' Performance, researchers concluded that most of the profitability ratios, including ROE, ROA, net markup and non-markup income to total assets have declined in the post-merger period. Only an insignificant improvement is observed in net interest margin and administrative expenses to profit before tax ratios in the post-merger period. Deterioration is also observed in the liquidity ratios of the acquirer banks in the post-merger period. The cash and cash equivalent to total assets has declined significantly and advances, and investment to total assets ratios are increased, but insignificantly. Similarly the performances of the acquirer banks do not reflect any worthwhile improvement in terms of capital stability in the post-merger period. The deposit to owners' equity ratio is significantly increased, but the capital adequacy has declined, showing an unfavorable effect on the performances of the acquirer banks in the post-merger period. Shrestha, Thapa & Phuyal (2017), carried out the study on a comparative study of merger effect on financial performance of banking and financial institutions in Nepal.

Shrestha, Thapa & Phuyal (2017), study also shows that there is a significant change in performance before and after the merger and acquisition of banks. Mergers and acquisitions

continue to be a highly popular form of corporate development in today's banking industry world over. However, in a paradox to their popularity, acquisitions appear to provide at best a mixed performance to the broad range of stakeholders involved. While target firm shareholders generally enjoy positive short-term returns, investors in bidding firms frequently experience share price underperformance in the months following acquisition, with negligible overall wealth gains for portfolio holders. This study is designed to fill the knowledge gap by answering the research question, what is the impact of Mergers and Acquisitions on the overall financial performance of commercial banks in Nepal? This study try to answering the following questions.

- 1. What is the impact of merger on liquidity position of banks?
- 2. Does the profitability position change after the merger?
- 3. Is there any different in capital adequacy position before and after the merger?

#### **3** Purposes of the study

The main objective of the study is to analysis the effect merger on the financial performance of banks.

- 1. To analyze the impact of merger on liquidity position of banks.
- 2. To examine the impact of merger on profitability position of banks

3. To assess the impact of merger on capital adequacy position of banks.

#### **4** Conceptual framework

The following conceptual framework is developed for the purpose of this study. It shows the relationship between the merger as independent variable and the operating performance as dependent variable. The dependent variable (financial performance) is measured by using financial ratios, grouped into three categories including profitability, liquidity position and capital structure.



#### Hypothesis

H<sub>0</sub>: There is no significant difference in the Liquidity positon between pre and post-merger of banks.

H<sub>1</sub>: There is significant difference in the Liquidity position between pre and post-merger of banks.

H<sub>0</sub>: There is no significant difference in the Profitability position between pre and postmerger of banks

H<sub>1</sub>: There is significant difference in the Profitability position between pre and post-merger of banks.

H<sub>0</sub>: There is no significant difference in the Capital Adequacy position between pre and post-merger of banks.

H<sub>1</sub>: There is significant difference in the Capital Adequacy position between pre and postmerger of banks.

#### 5 Uses of the study

In the light of the fact that mammoth resources both financially and non-financially are usually committed to effectively implement mergers and acquisitions, it is noteworthy to establish the actual impact of M&A on the financial performance of Commercial banks in Nepal. The submission of this fact will be of significant use to the Policy makers to devise new standards in establishing an appropriate level of merger and acquisition. The findings will be used to come up with more effective methods of managing liquidity levels of a firm. Likewise the study will add knowledge on the understanding of the importance of mergers in analyzing performance by current investors, customers of commercial banks and other banks in this competitive industry. Similarly this study will provide a base for further research especially in the areas of merger and acquisitions for researchers interested in building on the already existing knowledge base about theoretical and empirical work on the impacts of mergers and acquisition on the financial performance of commercial banks. It will be of benefit to executives and managers of the commercial banks as the study would cover banks that have recently merged and their relative performance. The findings of this study will make contributions to the existing paradigm on investor's behavior toward the mergers, acquisition and restructuring of banks. It would also be used to establish the research gaps and provide reference for further research under the field of merger and acquisition.

#### **6** Limitation of the study

This study tries to examine the effect of merger on financial performance of commercial banks in Nepal, still it has its own restrictions which are as below.

- 1. There are many variables that can be used to measure the performance of bank but this study cover only ROA, ROE, EPS, profit margin, assets quality, debt to equity ratio, CAR, liquidity ratios.
- 2. This study is based on the secondary data collected only from the annual report of Bank of Kathmandu, NMB Bank and Siddhartha Bank Limited, only the data of other bank and financial intuition merged with these banks are ignored in this study reliability of the result is based on the reliability of data available from the annual report.
- 3. For pre-merger information and data only Bank of Kathmandu, NMB Bank and Siddhartha Bank Limited are collected the date of other bank and financial institutions which are merge with these banks are ignored in this study.

- 4. This research is context specific; its results and analysis may be peculiar to BFIs only and do not serve the rest of sector of Nepalese corporate world.
- 5. Assumption of paired sample T-test is not checked in this study.
- 6. Apart from the profitability, other performance ratios like risk, cash flow has been ignored to know the financial performance of banks

#### 7 Literature review

Acquisition refers to the situation were "one firm buys a controlling, or 100 percent interest in other firm with the intent of using a core competence more efficiently by making the acquired firm a subsidiary business within its portfolio. Normally acquisitions are the done in order to have time and speed of operational advantages, economies of scale and market advantages. There are mainly three types of acquisition there are horizontal, vertical and related. Whereas horizontal acquisition is related to the acquisition of a firm competing in the same industry, vertical acquisition refers to the acquiring a suppliers or distributor of one or more of its goods or services. On the other hand related acquisition refers to the acquisitions is that a merger is normally more collaborative, voluntary and mutually entered into than as acquisition, which is normally dominated by and organization taking over another. This suggests the merger of two firms agree to integrate operation on a relatively co-equal basis because they have resources and capabilities that together may create a stronger competitive advantage. (Adhikari, 2014)

Shah & Khan (2017), conduct the investigates the effects of mergers and acquisitions (M & A) on the operating performance of the acquirer banks in Pakistan. For this purpose, a sample of 18 transactions, involving acquirer banks, listed on the Karachi Stock Exchange,

is used. The Financial Ratio Analysis (FRA) is used to determine the effects of M & A. The significance of change in the operating performances is tested through a paired sample t-test. The results indicate deterioration in the performances of the acquirer banks in the post-merger period. Researchers concluded that most of the profitability ratios, including ROE, ROA, net markup and non-markup income to total assets have declined in the post-merger period. Only an insignificant improvement is observed in net interest margin and administrative expenses to profit before tax ratios in the post-merger period. Deterioration is also observed in the liquidity ratios of the acquirer banks in the post-merger period. The cash and cash equivalent to total assets has declined significantly and advances, and investment to total assets ratios are increased, but insignificantly. Similarly the performances of the acquirer banks do not reflect any worthwhile improvement in terms of capital stability in the post-merger period. The deposit to owners' equity ratio is significantly increased, but the capital adequacy ratio has declined, showing an unfavorable effect on the performances of the acquirer banks in the post-merger period

Shrestha et al. (2017), carried out the study on a comparative study of merger effect on financial performance of banking and financial institutions in Nepal. This study makes an attempt to analyze the financial performance of merged banking and financial institutions relative to their pre-merger performance, and assess the perception of the stakeholders towards merger. Six banks and financial institutions are considered as sample to undertake this study along with 120 respondents for secondary and primary data respectively. The financial ratios comparison method along with t-test of changes in performance measures has been used. This study found that merger impacts performance positively when larger and stable parties such as commercial banks act as bidders as opposed to the merger

between smaller BFIs mainly other than commercial banks as bidder. The loan quality significantly deteriorates after merger in most of the cases and profitability measured in terms of ROA and ROE is adversely affected in most of the cases after the merger. Therefore, the merger should not be considered as the definite solutions to overcome the challenges faced in the market; enough evaluation is needed to select the right partners before executing the merger.

Dwa & Shah (2017) conduct the on a study on merger and operating performance of commercial banks of Nepal. This study aims to find the impact of mergers on operating performance of sample merged banks. To attain the research objective, this study has taken 8 independent variables; operating profit margin, net profit margin, return on assets, return on equity, debt equity ratio, return on loan loss provision, return on staff expenses and return on operating expenses. Three cases have been taken for the study as a sample to examine whether merger has led to a profitable situation or not. Research mainly focuses on quarterly secondary data which is analyzed using paired sample t-test, correlation analysis, VIF test and regression analysis. From the analysis it is deduced that merger has no significant role in case of Nepal Bangladesh Bank and NIC Asia Bank in terms of various operational ratios, since many operational ratios have been found weaker in postmerger period than pre-merger period. But merger plays a significant role in case of Machhapuchchhre Bank where almost all operational ratios have improved in post-merger. While analyzing the situation of overall commercial banking sectors, with the help of sampled data, it is observed that largely the merger isn't able to produce positive results for the merged entities. The study shows the reason for negative result of merger as the poor financial position of the target banks. Further the merger will somewhat act as a

solution for the current problems of Nepalese BFIs. Merger will be a wise option to bring BFIs in strong and growing position and to meet the requirement of current paid up capital as per the latest NRB directive. But it also must be considered that merger in itself is not the ultimate solution to strengthen the financial position of BFIs.

Awan & Mahmood (2015), conduct the study on impact of merger and acquisition on performance of commercial bank in Pakistan. This study concluded that the firm performance can take the influence of mergers and acquisitions deals as well. As for as this study analysis is concerned out of four measurement ratios all ratios remained positive solvency, liquidity, profitability and investment showed positive impact of mergers and acquisitions on firm performance. This study used ratios of two years earlier and two years after mergers and acquisitions deals and found overall positive impact but these results are of short time period. It is analyzed that mergers and acquisitions have impact on firm performance in the long run. Sometimes organizations indulge in the mergers and acquisitions. It is also concluded that due to expansion in the business activities the organizations per unit cost go to decline.

#### 8 Research Gap

After review the past article and thesis, impact on merger on financial performance of commercial banks. This research study is mainly differ than the previous research study due to the following reason.

- 1. This research study will mainly focus on both measuring financial performance and effect of merger on Performance of bank.
- 2. The ratios used to measure the financial performance variable are different than the past researcher.

3. This study will be focus on the comparative performance before and after the merger.

#### 9 Research methodology

#### 9.1 Research design

This research used descriptive and analytical research design in order to examine impact of merger on the financial performance of commercial banks. The methods of research utilize in descriptive research are survey method of all kinds, including comparative and co-relation methods. In analytical research, on the other hand, the researcher has to use facts or information already available, and analyses these to make critical evaluation of the material.

#### 9.2 Population and sampling

**Population:** The populations for this research are all the commercial banks which are marched after the merger and acquisition bylaw 2011 AD implemented. According to the monetary policy 2019/20 AD, in line with the Merger & Acquisition Policy of this Bank, a total of 171 BFIs have undergone through the merger/acquisition process as of mid-July 2019. Out of these, license of 128 institutions has been revoked thereby forming 43 institutions. Among them 12 are the commercial banks. These 12 merged commercial banks are taken as the population for the study.

**Sample:** Out of 12 merged commercial banks, three commercial banks, NMB bank, bank of Kathmandu Lumbini Limited (BOK), Siddhartha Bank Limited (SBL) which all are marge in 2015 AD are selected as sample by using systematic random sampling. The sample size of this study is three and sampling interval of this study is 4<sup>th</sup>, which is calculate dividing size of population by size of sample. Every 4<sup>th</sup> element in the population is chosen starting form a random point in the population frame.

#### 9.3 Data collection and processing procedure

This research examine the impact of merger on financial performance of commercial bank. For this purpose secondary data are used, data are collected from the only the financial statement of the selected banks Bank of Kathmandu, NMB Bank and Siddhartha Bank Limited 3 year before and after the merger and acquisition. For pre-merger financial performance analysis only the data and information are collected only form annual report of Bank of Kathmandu Limited, NMB Bank Limited and Siddhartha Bank Limited. The data and information of other financial institutions which are merged with these banks are ignore for pre-merger financial analysis. For the post-merger period, the focus of the analysis was on the combined institution.

#### 9.4 Data analysis tools and techniques

In order to measure the impact of merger, the average performance of the three premerger years (T-3, T-2, T-1) is compared with the average performance of the three post-merger years (T+1, T+2, T+3) of the respective banks. The year of merger is indicated by T0 and is not included in the performance evaluation in order to eliminate the effect of the merger cost. Accounting ratios used to analyze the financial performance of the 3 banks under study. For the pre-merger period ratios, data and information only Bank of Kathmandu Limited, NMB Bank Limited and Siddhartha Bank Limited is collected and examined to get an indication of the relative financial performance. For the post-merger period, the focus of the analysis was on the combined institution. Pre-merger average data (m1) was compared with the post-merger average data (m2) to determine what changes occurred in financial performance following the merger or the acquisition. The researcher then conducted a multivariate regression analysis to establish the relationship between the dependent and independent variables.

#### Statistical tools.

**Mean:** Mean is the value, which represents the group of values and gives an idea about the concentration of values in the central part of the distribution. An average gives us a point which is most representative of the data. It is sum of all the observations divided by the number of observations.

Mathematically, Mean 
$$(\overline{X}) = \frac{\sum X}{N}$$

Standard deviation: Standard deviation is a statistical measure of the variability of a distribution of return around its mean. It is the square root of the variance and measure the

unsystematic risk. A small standard deviation means a high degree of uniformity of the observation. It is denoted by Greek letter called sigma ( $\sigma$ ).

Mathematically, Standard deviation 
$$(\sigma) = \sqrt{\frac{\sum (X - \overline{X})^2}{N - 1}}$$

#### **Correlation coefficient:**

Correlation coefficient is a relative measure of co-movements between variables. It is the measurement of linear relationship between two or more variables. Its values lie between -1 and +1.

Mathematically,

Correlation coefficient (r) = 
$$\frac{N\sum XY - (\sum X)(\sum Y)}{\sqrt{N\sum X^2 - (\sum X)^2} \sqrt{N\sum Y^2 - (\sum Y)^2}}$$

#### **Regression:**

The statistical technique which studies the average relationship between two or more variables in terms of original unit of data is called regression analysis. The simple regression analysis describes the average relationship between only two variables. It measures per unit change. The multiple regressions are a logical extension of the simple linear regression analysis. Instead of single independent variable, two or more independent variables are used to estimate the unknown values of a dependent variable.

Y = a + bX

a = Constant

 $b = Beta \ coefficient$ 

#### **Financial tools**

#### **Return on assets:**

It is the ratio of net income to total assets. It reveals the management efficiency of a bank in transforming assets into earnings. It measures profitability of a bank therefore; it is important measure for this study. ROA=Net income/Total assets

#### **Return on Equity**

It is the ratio of net income to shareholder equity. It shows the management efficiency in using shareholder's money. ROE=Net income/Shareholder equity

#### **Earnings per share:**

Earnings per share is calculated as dividing earning available to share holder by total share outstanding.

#### Capital adequacy:

Capital adequacy is one of the elements that indicate the measurement of financial strength of a bank. It is the capital position of the bank which somewhat assure depositors that they will be compensated if any failure occurs. The capital adequacy ratio here is extracted from annual report which is calculated as the ratio of regulatory capital (tier I + tier II) to total risk weighted assets.

CAR= (Tier I+ Tier II) capital/Total risk weighted assets

#### Assets Quality:

To address the asset quality, non-performing loans to total loans (NPL) will be used in this study. Non-performing loans (loans which are considered not to generate earnings) to total loans ratio measures the asset quality of bank. In other words, it reflected the health of bank's loan portfolio that affects performance of bank negatively. The higher the NPL ratio the poorer the quality of loan portfolio and therefore it leaded to lower profitability.

#### Liquidity:

Liquidity can be defined as a reserve to protect the bank from unforeseen contingencies. To address the Liquidity two ratios will be used in this study: Total loan/Total deposit and total debt to shareholder equity. As loans was one of the main source of income of a bank, the ratio total loan and advance to total deposit show the liquidity position of bank. Similarly debt to equity ratios also show the long term solvency position of the bank.

Variable	Measure
Profitability	$ROA = \frac{Net \ Income}{Total \ Assets}$
	$ROE = \frac{Net  Income}{Share  holder  equity}$
	Profit margin = $\frac{NI}{TOR}$
Earnings per share	EPS Earning availabel to shareholders Total share outstanding
Capital Adequacy	$C = \frac{Tier I + Tier II}{Total Risk Weighted assets}$
Assets quality	$A = \frac{NPA}{TLA}$
Liquidity	$L = \frac{Total \ Loan \ and \ Advance}{Total \ Deposit}$
Debt equity ratio	Debt to equity= $\frac{Total \ debt}{Shareholder \ equity}$

#### **10 Chapter Plan**

Considering the objectives in mind, the study will be organized into five chapters.

#### **Chapter 1: Introduction**

This chapter includes background of the study, statement of the problems, objectives of the study, conceptual framework, and significance of the study, limitation of the study and organization of the study.

#### **Chapter 2: Review of literature**

This chapter includes the relevant previous writing and studies to find the existing gap; review of textbook, dissertation is included in this chapter.

#### **Chapter 3: Methodology**

This chapter contains research design, population and sample size, data collection procedure and tools used for analysis.

#### **Chapter 4: Results**

This chapter consists of systematic presentation and analysis of financial statement employing financial and statistical tools. It also includes major findings and discussion.

#### **Chapter 5: Conclusion**

This chapter includes the summary, conclusion and implication of the study.

#### REFERENCES

- Adhikari, D. R. (2014). *Strategic Management* (Third ed.). Kathmandu: Buddha Academic Publishers and Distributors Pvt. Ltd.
- Awan, P. D., & Mahmood, U. B. (2015). Impact of Mergers and Acquisitions on the Performance of Commercial Banks in Pakistan . *Journal of Poverty, Investment* and Development.
- Chalise, M., & Bhandari, D. R. (2018). *Strategic Management* (ed.). Kathmandu: Asmita Pubilication.
- Gathuku, G. M., & Njeru, D. A. (2015). Effect of Mergers on Financial Performance of Commercial Banks in Kenya . *International Journal of Science and Research*
- Kishore (2009), Financial Management, Taxmann's, Edition 7, pp 1068.
- Mehandiratta, S. (2017). Impact of Mergers and Acquisition on The Financial Performance of Indian Commercial Banks. *Thesis*.
- Shah, A. K., & Dwa, S. (2017). A Study on Merger and Operating Performance of Commercial Banks of Nepal. *Journal of Social and Business Research*.
- Shah, B. A., & Khan, N. (2017). Impacts of Mergers and Acquisitions on Acquirer Banks' Performance. Australasian Accountancy, business and Finance Journal.
- Shrestha, M., Thapa, R. K., & Phuyal, R. K. (2017). A Comparative Study of Merger effect on Financial Performance of Banking and Financial Instuation in Nepal. *Journal of Business and Social Sciences Research*.
- Sudarsanam, S., (2003), Creating Value from Mergers and Acquisitions *The Challenges, Prentice Hall, Essex*
- Awan, P. G., & Mahmood, U. B. (2015). Impact of Mergers and Acquisitions on the Performance of Commercial Banks in Pakistan. *Journal of Poverty, Investment and Development*.